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The Mongkok Project includes
a 15-level shopping mall
featuring the latest in
architectural designs, a 59-storey
Grade-A office tower
incorporating state-of-the-art
building features and the 5-star
Langham Place Hotel which
offers top quality finishes

and comfort.

HAZREERE &
BEBE-BNISES
B BAREE
RRERMSIOESHRE
BFER—HRHEER
BZ  FEBENTHE
MEASIBE -




The Great Bagle Croup is ene of Heng Keng's leading preoperty and hetel companies, with
an GRPRHenCaE MaNagEmeEnt team knewn feor s tradk recere! in evaluating and
capialising en eydes in preperty markets.

Headzwariered in Hong Keng, the Grevp ceveleps, fnvests in and manages high quality
effifice, retall, residential anel hetel properdies in Heong Keng, Nerih Ar@@m@@ ane Burepe
It cere commerdal properies comprise 1.59 millie

a

llemn square 7eet of Gravke-A ciifice space in
the prime @@mm@v@ﬁ@ﬂ districts of Heong Keng. & is elke devely) OQ’E\_J & 176 mimf@”@ SqEane]
{feat ofifce, retail and hetel cermples in the prime shepping distie: of Mengzek, Ko WP@@m.
In e Unfted SS@a@@@ it ewne er has Investment Interests in feur effe bl
tetel floer arse of 784,000 square feet. The Greup’s extensive |
- COMPISES seven properiies with ¢ OW@u 4,000 reems, naueing
(re-branced as Langham Hetels Internadensl in Felbruary 2003) 2
Heong Keng ane Hve lusury & no@@ s fm &oﬁd@jﬂ,j Torente, Besien, W
mm@@ by & varely of leading hetel names. AR ammi ;

mw Greet Eagle eversess (e perticlie %o enlhe
@{m PrepErly MEnagemeEnt and malntenance s@wtf 2

o2

oy
>J

@
=
]

@)
D
o
=5
©
[
@
4]
=

The Greup weas feundee in 1968 in the f
listed en the Heng Keong Steclk E m@ neelin
company incerperated in Bermuds, beeame ¢
The @reuR.

The Grewp hed & net profit of HIKSSSY milllen (apprexis
vear 2002 ane & net asset value of HIkS14.604 millen u
off 37st Decemlbar 2002

%@‘E%i@ﬁ o EREEE Giﬁ%ﬂﬂr o FEaF
ESE50EEERRS Q)ML@W
R -
S EE SRR RS

S TR

; WR=NE=FEEE
L"\ULE T I REE '

SNBSS  BHARREEATAEBRARWLTAEESR) RR=BS=s
1 SEEH-EEEREA-FOT AESEENAR (- ABLFEERAR) -




7

o m Contents

P4
Pg

P18

P37

P39

P 86
P o2

P93

Corporate information

Financial Highlights
Chairman’s Statement

Biographical Details
of Directors and
Senior Management

Report of the Directors

Notice of 2003

Annual General Meeting

Consoclidated Income
Statement

Balance Sheets

Consclidated Statement
of Changes in Equity

Consclidated Cash Flow
Statement

Notes to the Financial
Statements

Appendices
Report of the Auditors

Shareholders’ Calendar

P+

P 96

P 100

P 109

P 117

P 120

P 121

P 123

P12+

P 120

P173

P179

P 180

REEHR
MEBHE
IRREE
EZREEEE
ABHN
EEEHREE

ZEEZE
BREBEXRTEE

HEAER
GAEREHR

Mt &%
BEMEBEE
RRER R



Corporate Information

S R

Directors

LO Ying Shek,

Chafrman and Managing Director
LO TO Lee Kwan
LO Ka Shui,

Deputy Chairman and

Managing Director
LO Kai Shui,

Deputy Managing Director
Brian Shane McELNEY
CHENG Hoi Chuen, Vincent
WONG Yue Chim, Richard
LEE Pui Ling, Angelina
LO Hong Sui, Antony
LAW Wai Duen
LO Hong Sui, Vincent
LO Ying Sui, Archie
KAN Tak Kwong

Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai

Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Citibank, N.A. |
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Solicitors

Johnson, Stokes & Master
Clifford Chance

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Secretary

TSANG Yiu Wing, Peter

Principal Registrars

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda)
Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Registered Office
Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

Principal Office

33rd Floor, Great Eagle Centre
23 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Website

http://www.greateagle.com.hk

P2

Great Eagle Holdings Limited




=

BER
FTERESBELE

BERHNE

BRER
EITEREBHEEE

=S
FIEF LR

Z5kE

g R

ETH

FIfmE

EfR

B2

\ER

EER

ik

FEEREIT

BBLBEERITARAT
PEIRIT (BE)BRLQF

TEBERIT
BERTHERATE

2Em
F LT EERAT

SEREENT

%R ED
ZH e BERD BT

IEROPBFETE

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda)
Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HMO8

Bermuda

ROBFEREEEHE
EBTRESBTHRLAT

ERRER-N=5
SR L+

AfMREE

Cedar House
41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

TENER

4831

http:/Awww.greateagle.com.hk

J Annual Report 2002

P3




Financial Highhghtg
DBERE

For the year ended 315t December 2002
BE-EFF-F+-R=T-HUFE

2002 |

HKS000 !
Turnover & 2£%8 - 2,569,540
Profit before taxation BRI ATER ? 739,487
Profit attributable to shareholders B %53 IR =R 589,444
Earnings per share SR & F | $71.02 |
Dividend per share B R E. $0.95
Shareholders’ funds BR SRS 14,603,844
Fixed assets B E&E&E 28,162,079

Total assets EELHE - 29,134,597

2001
HK$C00

2,677,251

646,321

507,299

$0.90

$0.21

15,123,245

27,809,250

29,021,639

-3%

1%

0%




Employment of Assets EEER
For the year ended 31st December 2002
BEE-_ZSR_E=+-R=+—BitEEFE

Assets Employed

=§-3

(Total Assets HK$29,135 Million)
(BEREBE29,135688T)

Local Investment
Properties

KR B

Overseas Investment
Properties

BIMREYE

Other Assets
EnEE

L]

]

Profit from Operations
Ed =]

(HK$1,080 Million)
(11,0808 Em)

Rental Income

38%

Hotels Operation Income

BIEREBAN

’ D Bk
]

60%
Others

HAto

Financed by
K&

Shareholders’ Funds

xR AR

Non-current Liabilities
| SEREBIRE

Minority Interests

DR

38%

50%

Current Liabilities

10%
) mERE

2%

Profit Attributable to Shareholders
RBREER

HK$ Mitlion
BEBEET
1,200
1,000}

800 F

600 - ‘l -
7
ne

400 +

|
l
:
|
200} |
1

98 93 00 01 o02
(15 months)
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Chamrmean’s
Statement

During 2002, our hotel business
in Hong Kong performed ahead
of expectations with improved
yields and better income.
Otherwise the Group’s
businesses, both local and
overseas, continued. to operate
under difficult market
conditions. Generally lower
interest rates however have
helped cushion the decline in our
overall income.

P38
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Operations Review

1.

Rental Properties

Hong Kong Rental Properties

(a) Rental Income for the year ended 31st December 2002

Gross Floer Ares (sg.f.) E Gross Rental
Groug's | Perking Income
Interest Offtee | Commercial | Residenidal Speces | (HKSmilllen)
Citibank Plaza 85.93% 968,000 49,000 -~ 537 359.5
100% 70,000 - - 3 285
Acquired in 2001 100% 232,500 380 - 15 132.8
Great Eagle Centre 100% 193,000 77,000 - 296 67.5
Astor Plaza 100% - 70,000 - - 0.1
Concordia Plaza 100% 28,000 - - 5 4.9
Convention Plaza Apartments 100% - - 10,000 - 3.3
586.6
(b) Occupancy and Rental Trend
Occupancy at 315t December 2002 B
Office Commiercial Residential
Citibank Plaza 85.1% 100.0% -
Great Eagle Centre 94.2% 98.4% -
Astor Plaza - 34.7%* -
Concordia Plaza 100.0% - -
Convention Plaza Apartments - - 100.0%

* Substantial portions of this arcade are being converted into banquet and function rooms for Eaton Hotel

Annual Report 2002
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Chairman’s Statement

The Grade-A office market in Hong
Kong weakened further during
2002. Despite a low level of new
supply, the continued downsizing of
corporations, especially in the
financial sector, released a
substantial amount of redundant
spaces, pushing overall vacancy
rates into double-digits. Effective
rent rates also went down fairly
significantly as a result.

Net rental income from our Hong
Kong rental portfolio decreased by a
modest 7.1% from $597.1 million
in 2001 to $554.5 million in 2002.
The portfolio’s income benefited by
the full-year accounting of income
from the office space purchased
from Citibank in mid-2001.

m et T PRI S
U.S. Renta: Prooperies

The continued softening of the
California office markets resulted in
lower occupancy and lower rental
rates. As a result revenues in 2002
were 18.4% less than in 2001. The
properties in the San Francisco Bay
Area were particularly hurt by the
decline of the dot.com industry,
which had resulted in the
bankruptcy of a number of tenants.
The property at 888 West Sixth
Street Los Angeles, which became
100%-owned in June 2002,
performed well with improved
occupancy of 94%. Furthermore,
recent rental activities at all our
properties show encouraging signs
that rental rates may have
bottomed already. We expect
occupancy to improve in the
coming year.

2.

Hotels and Furnished
Apartments

The impact of the September 11
incident and the global economy
downturn continued to weigh
down the industry's performance
overall, especially from the long
haul leisure markets of the USA and
Europe. Business travel also saw
little growth momentum, resulting
in continued softness in room rates
for the overseas hotels,

The Hong Kong hotel market
performed relatively better due to
increased tourist arrivals from
Mainland China, which filled up the
lower end market and in turn
benefited the high end hotels.
Further relaxation in travel
restrictions and increasing affluence
on the Mainland are likely to have
major positive impact in the coming
years.

In February 2003, the Group’s hotel
management division Great Eagle
Hotels International was re-branded
as Langham Hotels international,
after the prominent Langham Hotel
owned by the Group in West End
London. This new brand name, with
its prestigious guality image, will set
the benchmark for the Group's
future global hotel expansion.

Hong Kong Operations
Great Eagle Hotel, Hong Kong

Underpinned by the strength in
convention business, the hotel
performed reasonably well in 2002

with an increased occupancy of
83% (2001: 79%), while
maintaining average room rate
levels at HK$823 (2001: HK$829).
Net operating income for 2002
grew 13.4% over the previous year.

The hotel will be renamed Langham
Hotel in October 2003,

Eaton Hotel, Hong Kong

The growth in visitors from the
China market and the perception of
Hong Keong as a safe destination
strengthened the leisure market
segment in 2002, For the year the
hotel maintained a high occupancy
at 83.5% (2001: 84.6%) and
improved the average room rate to
HK$443 (2001: $426).

Net operating income of the Hotel
jumped 40.3% in 2002 mainly due
to a 22% increase in food and
beverage revenue, brought about
by a strategic decision to focus on
bangueting services. Additional
portions of Astor Plaza underneath
the Hotel have been or are being
converted into bangueting facilities
and function to further enhance its
local bangueting, meeting and
conference business in 2003.

Eaton House Furnished
Apartment, Hong Kong

Overall performance weakened as a
result of a substantial reduction in
corporate demand and increased
competition from hotels and new
supply of serviced apartments.
Eaton House registered an average
occupancy of 69% in the year 2002
{2001: 75%;).

P10
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International Operations

The Langham Hilton, London

Although trading was much
influenced by post September 11
activities, which lasted into the first
quarter of 2002, and a slow
summer, The Langham’s
performance improved in the last
quarter of the year with increased
international travel and residential
conference business: However,
London remains soft on rates overall
due to expense tightening by
corporations and uncertainty arising
from the possibility of war in Iraq.

For the year 2002, the hotel
achieved an average occupancy of
69% and an average room rate of
£151 as compared to 68% and
£159in 2001. The performance
was in line with the market.

Delta Chelsea Hotel, Toronto

As fears generated from the
terrorist attack of September 11
started to recede, the struggling
economy, especially in the United
States started to emerge as the
major deterrent to travel.
International business, corporate
travel, overseas tours and leisure
business slowed down considerably
in the city and those few citywide
conventions planned softened from
original expectations.

Despite those difficulties, for the
year 2002, the hotel achieved an
average occupancy of 66% and
maintained an average room rate of
C$141 as compared to 73% and
C%133in 2001.

Sheraton Towers Southgate
Hotel, Melbourne

Whilst the Australian domestic
economy was able to continue its
growth during 2002, the world
economic situation continued to
impact on consumer and business
confidence. The increasing security
threats and lack of citywide
meetings and conventions has
weakened the long haul market and
corporate travel. The Melbourne 5-
star hotel market reflected this with
room vyields decreasing by up to
11%.

Despite this, for the year 2002, the
hotel achieved an average
occupancy of 69% and an average
room rate of A$217 as compared to
73% and A$223in 2001 for an
overall modest yield improvement
on the market trend.

Hotel Le Meridien, Boston

Year 2002 was another difficult year
for the US lodging industry, and for
Boston in particular, as revenues
declined for the second year in a
row. Although the year began with
significant year-over-year declines in
occupancy, many hotels were able
to stimulate demand by cutting
rates sharply.

For the year 2002, the hotel
achieved an average occupancy of
70% and an average room rate of
US$200 as compared to 65% and
US$236in 2001. Business traffic
remains soft while the US economy

looks for new directions.
Completion of a new Convention
and Exhibition Centre and the final
stage of the 'Big Dig’, the largest
tunnel and highway project in US
history which will dramatically
improve congestion and mobility in
the city are future positive steps for
this destination.

Sheraton Auckland Hotel and
Towers, Auckland

Although meeting and conference
business market segments were
depressed throughout the city, there
was revenue growth in the Leisure
market segments partly led by the
early trials for the America’s Cup
and the successful results from the
Tourist Board's recent campaigns.
Continuing competitiveness within
the market from serviced
apartments ensured room rates
remained suppressed in the year
despite a strengthening in overall
arrivals.

For the year 2002, the hotel
achieved an average occupancy of
65% and an average room rate of
NZ$144 as compared to 68% and
NZ$142 in 2001,

Annual Report 2002
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" Chairman’s Stareiment

3.

Properties Under
Development

Mongkolk Project

Construction of the superstructure
and the basements commenced at
the start of 2002 and made
significant progress during the year.
By year-end the building structures
had reached the following levels:

fiotal
Nl

‘ Pregrese  of Levals

Office Tower  Level 36 59

Retail Tower  Level 9 15

Hotel Tower Leval 17 42

Jopping out of the three building
structures will take olace in mid-
2003 whilst construction of the
building envelepes and internal
fitting out will continue through
2004. Final design of the
architectural features of the
shopping centre, curtain walling of
the office tower and the interior
finishes of the hotel have been
largely completed. We strongly
believe that total commitment to
quality will be key to the eventual
success of the project. State-of-the-
art building features have been
incorporated into the design of the
Grade-A office tower and the luxury
hotel. We have alsc brought in
internationally renowned shopping
centre designers Jerde & Associates
to work alongside project architects
Wong & Quyang in creating
innovative architectural features for

Mareh 2001
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Mongkok Project has made
Substantial Progress...

and will be

January 20083
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Chairman’s Starement

the shopping centre, which will
offer an unprecedented and
exciting experience to shoppers in
Hong Kong. Issuance of the
occupation permit for the entire
complex is targeted for the end of
first guarter 2004. The hotel and
the shopping centre components of
this massive complex are expected
to open for business in the third
and fourth guarters of 2004
respectively.

Preparation for the marketing and
leasing of the shopping centre,
under the advice of major
international shopping centre
consultants and a top worldwide
advertising agency, is at an
advanced stage. A major cinema
chain has signed a preliminary
agreement to lease and operate the
6-screen cineplex. Formal launch of
the leasing campaign is scheduled
for the third quarter of 2003.

The hotel at the Mongkok Project,
with a total of 719 room bays
{(some rooms having been converted
into spa, gymnasium and club
facilities), has been upgraded to a
5-star hotel in justification of its
generous room sizes, its quality
design and finishes and its strategic
MTR location. Named the Langham
Place Hotel, it has been introduced
1o the international hotel industry in
early March 2003.

The total expenditure incurred in
relation to the project, including
interest capitalised, amounted to
HK$7,809 million as of year-end
2002 (2001: HK$6,700 million). The
HK$5,100 million construction loan
was refinanced in December 2002
at a more favourable interest
spread. The extension of loan
maturity to December 2008 wil} also
allow more flexibility in the leasing
of the property. The undrawn foan
commitment of HK$3,670 million as
of 31st December 2002 should be
sufficient to fund the project to
completion.

4,

Trading

Hong Kong's sluggish property
market continued to affect the
performance of the construction
materials trading arm Toptech Co.
Ltd. in 2002. Total revenue for 2002
amounted to HK$164 million, a
drop of 7% from 2001. However,
effective cost control resulted in a
moderate increase in gross profit
contribution from the business.

53

Property Management

Competition in the property
management industry remained
keen in 2002, as property owners
demanded for lower management
charges and manager's
remuneration. While we managed
to maintain a stable portfolio of
buildings under management, there
was a drop of 1.4% in income from
HK$17.9 million in 2001 to
HK$17.7 million as a result of
reduction in manager’s
remuneration upon renewal of
contracts.

Top line revenue of our engineering
division remained under pressure
during 2002 because of the slow
economy. However as a
consequence of improved
productivity and cost control, the
division showed a 36%
improvement in contribution from
HK$6.6 million in 2001 to HK$9.0
million in 2002,

P14
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Financial

Review
Delbt

Consolidated Net Attributable Debt
as of 31st December 2002 was
HK$11,955 million, an increase of
HK$878 million over that at year-
end 2001. The increased
borrowings were mainly related to
Mongkok project expenditures.

Consolidated Net Asset Value,
based on professional valuation of
the Group's investment properties
and other assets at cost, amounted
to HK$14,604 million as of 31st
December 2002, a decrease of
HK$519 million from that of year-
end 2001. The resulting gearing
ratio at 31st December 2002 was
82%.

As at 31st December 2002, we had
outstanding interest rate swaps
with total notional principal of
HK$2,420 million, representing
26% of our HK$-denominated
debts. With HKS interest rates
trending lower throughout 2002,
we kept 74% of our HK$
borrowings on floating-rate basis.
As a result we achieved further
significant savings in interest
expenses.

Our foreign currency debts, taken
out to finance our overseas hotels
and U.S. office properties,
amounted to the equivalent of
HK$3,801 million as of 31st
December 2002. All these foreign
currency borrowings are fully
hedged by the value of the
underlying properties. Of this, the
eguivalent of HK$1,059 million, or
28% of our foreign currency debts,
was on fixed-rate basis.

Finance Cost

The net finance cost incurred during
2002 was HK$326.6 million, as
compared to the HK$427.3 million
charged in 2001. Substantially
lower interest rates had more than
offset the effects of the higher debt
level. In addition, HK$246.5 million
of finance cost relating to the
Mongkok Project was capitalized,
only marginally higher than that of
HK$244.1 million for 2001. Lower
interest rates largely offset the
effect of incremental project
expenditures.

Overall interest cover for 2002 was
2.08 times, improved from that of
1.71 times for 2001.

Liguidity and Delbt
Maturity Profile

As of 31st December 2002, our
cash, bank deposits and committed
but undrawn loan facilities
amounted to a total of HK$4,470
million. The majority of our loan
facilities is medium-term in nature
and is secured by properties with
comfortable value to loan coverage.
The following is a profile of the
maturity of outstanding debts as of
31st December 2002.

Within 1 year 17.2%
1 — 2 years 11.9%
3 -5 years 50.6%
More than 5 years 20.3%

Pledge of Assets

At 31st December 2002, the
Group’s properties with a total
carrying value of approximately
HK$28,125 million (2001
HK$27,773 million) together with
assignments of sales proceeds,
insurance proceeds, rental income,
revenues and all other income
generated from the relevant
properties and deposits of
approximately HK$4.6 million
(2001: HK$95 .4 million) were
mortgaged or pledged to secure
credit facilities granted to the
Group.

Annual Report 2002 i




Chairman’s Stateinent

Commitments and
Contingent Liabilities

The Group

At 31st December 2002, the Group
had commitments and contingent
liabilities not provided for in these
financial statements, as follows:

(a) estimated expenditure in respect
of property under development
amounting to approximately
HK$2,947 million (2001:
HK$3,706.7 million) of which
approximately HK$2,456.8
million (2001: HK$3,255.3
million) were contracted for;

=

authorised capital expenditure
amounting to approximately
HK$74.4 million (2001: HK$43.5
million) of which approximately
HK$13.3 million (2001: HK$18.8
million) were contracted for; and

{c) commitments under foreign
exchange futura contracts to sell
approximately HK$154.3 million
(2001: HK$143.9 million) at
fixed exchange rates.

The Company

At 31st December 2002, the
Company had issued corporate
guarantees to certain banks in
respect of credit facilities drawn by
its subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$9,915 million

" {2001: HK$9,248 million).

Other than set out above, the
Group and the Company did not
have any significant commitments
and contingent liabilities at 37st
December 2002.

Outlook

Our Hong Kong hotels should be
the most promising among our
various business segments in terms
of performance in 2003. The
HKSAR Government's strong
commitment to promoting a larger
flow of tourists from Mainland
China will benefit the hotel industry
generally in Hong Kong. With a
sustainable high level of occupancy,
there should be room for modest
upward adjustments in room rates.
Our overseas hotels should perform
better in 2003 than 2002, although
it will still depend on how events in
the Middle East would unfold.

The present softness in the Hong
Kong office market will probably
continue through 2003, as new
buildings to be completed in the
second half would compete more
aggressively for tenants by way of
pricing. The cost of retaining
existing tenants will exert
downward pressure on the income
from our Hong Kong office
properties for the current year.
However with rents having
decreased to fairly low levels, there
has been a notable increase in the
number of enquiries from and
movement of tenants currently at
peripheral locations back to
Hongkong Island business districts.
This should have a medium-term
stabilizing effect on occupancy and
rent rates for our Central and
Wanchai properties.

We have made significant progress
in the construction of the Mongkok
project in the past year. At the same
time innovative value-added
features are being incorporated into
the design to turn this landmark
development into a one-of-a-kind
complex worthy of its very prime
location. Initial feedback from our
pre-marketing efforts has been
most encouraging. We are
confident of the positive response
to our marketing campaigns for the
shopping centre and the hotel
when they are officially launched
later this year.

P16
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Staff

The total number of employees in
the Group was 2,689 as of 31st
December 2002. Salaries of
employees are maintained at
competitive levels while bonuses are
granted on a discretionary basis.
Other employee benefits include
educational allowance, insurance,
medical scheme and provident fund
schemes. Senior employees
(including executive directors) are
entitled to participate in Great Eagle
Holdings Limited Share Option
Scheme (formerly Executive Share
Option Scheme). In order to
improve employees’ morale and
sense of teamwork, some measures
were considered by the Group’s
senior management in the 2002
year end to enhance employee
benefits and training as well as to
enhance employee relations
through internal communications
and recreation activities.

Dividends

The Board has resolved to
recormmend to Shareholders at the
forthcoming 2003 Annual General
Meeting (the “2003 AGM") the
payment of a final dividend of HK10
cents per share for the year ended
31st December 2002 (2001: HK14

cents per share), to be satisfied by
way of a scrip dividend with a cash
option, to Shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of
Members on 14th May 2003.
Together with the interim dividend
of HKS cents per share paid on 24th
October 2002, on the assumption
that every Shareholder elects to
receive all final dividend in cash, the
total dividend for the full year will
be HK15 cents per share (2001:
HK21 cents per share), amounting
to not less than HK$87,446,723
(2001: HK$121,205,158).

Subject to the approval of
Shareholders at the 2003 AGM and
the Listing Committee of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
granting listing of and permission to
deal in the new shares to be
allotted and issued pursuant to the
proposed distribution of a scrip
dividend mentioned herein, each
Shareholder will be allotted fully-
paid shares having an aggregate
market value equa! to the total
amount which such Shareholder
could elect to receive in cash and
will be given the option to elect to
receive payment partly or wholly in
cash instead of the allotment of
shares. Dividend warrants and share
certificates in respect of the
proposed dividend are expected to
be despatched to Shareholders on
or about 16th June 2003. Full
details of the scrip dividend will be
set out in a letter to be sent to
Shareholders together with a form
of election for cash soon after the
2003 AGM.

Closure of
Transfer Books

The Register of Members of the
Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 6th May 2003 to
Wednesday, 14th May 2003, both
days inclusive, during which period
no share transfers will be effected.

For those Shareholders who are not
already on the Register of Members,
in order to qualify for the final
dividend, all share certificates
accompanied by the duly completed
transfers must be lodged with the
Hong Kong Branch Registrars of the
Company, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited
(formerly Central Registration Hong
Kong Limited) of 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:00 p.m.
on Monday, 5th May 2003.

Finally, I would like to take this
opportunity to express my
appreciation and thanks to all staff
members for their dedication and
hard work and to address my
sincere gratitude to my fellow
Directors for their support and
guidance in the past year.

LO Ying Shek
Chairman

Hong Kong, 11th March 2003
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Mre. WEE Py Wrg,
Angreling®

aged 54, was eppointed @ Director
in ey 2002. She is & practising
solctor in Hong Kong and @
partner in the firm of Woo, Kwan,
Lee & Lo and s @ director of &
number of ather listed companies
n Hong Keng. She is ective in
public service and is the Deputy
Cheirman of the Growth Enterprise
Merket Listing Commitiee of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Lmited ang @ member of certein
statutiory, advisory and eppeal
committees. She hes a Bachelor of
Laws cegree from University
College London, United Kingdom
ang s @ Fellow of the Institute of

Chartered Accountants in England

Mz (L© SuSAntonyl
aged 61, wes appointed @ Director

of the Group in 1967. He has been
&ctvely invelved in property
development, construction ang
imvestmert for more than 34 years.
Mr, LO is @ son of the Chairman,
Mr. (O Ying Shek. He gracuates

frgmm the Unversity of New South
Weles with g Bachelor’s Degree in
Commerce.

LAWY Wl

aged 66, has been a Director of the
Group since 1963. She graduated
from the University of Hong Keng
with @ Bachelor’s Degree in Arts
and has been actively invelved in
the Group'’s property development
and investment in Hong Kong for
more than 38 years. She is &
deughter of the Chairman, Mr. LO
Ying Shek.

M L@ SUIAVINCERT

aged 54, has been a Director of the
Group since 1970. He is the
founder of the Shur On Group
winich is engeged in property
development, construction and
construction materigls industries in
Heng Keng, the Chinese Mainlend
ane Nerth America. He is the
Chairmen of Shut On Construction
and Materials Limited. Ms. LO is @
son of the Chalrman, Mr. LO Ying
Shek.

B WO Ving Suf, Avdhie

aged 50, has beern & Director singe
1993. Dr. LO s @ sor of the
Chairman, Mr. LO Ying Shelk, ang s
@ Praciising CarcIoegrst.

Wi [ARN Tk Ruwveng

aged 51, joined tne Group i 1981
1988. He gracluated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong
Agrinistration end s @ ermber of
various professienal socetes
including the Heng Kong Socety of
Accountents. Mr. KAN has more
than 27 years’ experience i
finance, accounting and
agministration i the reel estate,
finence and consiructon ndustres.

Note: As at 31st December 2002, Shui Sing Holdings Limited (”SSHL™), Shui Sing (BV1)
Limited (*SS (BVI)"), Shui Sing Company, Limited ("SSCL") and Galtee Investment
Limited (" Galtee”) have interests in the share capital of the Company which were
disclosed to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited under
the provision of part i of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance of Hong
Kong. Mr. LO Ying Shek, Madam LO TO Lee Kwan, Dr. LO Ka Shui, Mr. LO Kai Shui,
Madam LAW Wai Duen and Dr. LO Ying Sui, Archie are Directors of SSHL, SSCL and
Gaitee. Mr. LO Hong Sui, Vincent is a Director of $SCL. Dr. LO Ka Shui and M. LO

Kai Shui are Directors of S5 (BVI).
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v, EHEUNG T Ming, Ringe

ang is now the Managing Director
of Toptech Ce. Limited, the Group’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, which is
involved in the trading of bullding
ane architectural products in Hong
Kong and Maintand Ching, &n aree
in which Mr. CHEUNG has

extensive experience.

agea 41, foined the Group in {986

M TSANG iy WiRe),

aged 52, joined the Group in 1994
2s Company Secretary. He is
responsible for the Group’s
company secretarial matters and
a'so responsible for personnel,
office agministration and insurance
maiters in the Group's head office.
Mr. TSANG is @ Fellow of both The
mstitute of Chartered Secretanes
:nd Administraters in {he United
Kingcom &nd The Hong Keng
Institute of Company Secretaries
and is alse @ memiber of the
Company Secretaries Panel in the
latter [nstitute. He has 22 years’
experience in company secretarial
practice.
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Report of the Directors
For the year ended 31st December 2002
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31st December 2002.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are property development, property investment, hotel and restaurant
operation, trading of building materials, share investment, provision of management and maintenance services,
property management, insurance agency and sports club operations.

Resuits and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement. Dividends paid and
proposed for the year are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements during the year in the reserves of the Group and the Company are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

Five Years’ Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out in
Appendix i

Fixed Assets

The movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Details of the major interests in properties of the Group at 31st December 2002 are set out in Appendix |.

Share Capital

The movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year ended 31st December 2002, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares.
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Share Option Scheme

Details of the Company’s Share Option Scheme are set out in this Report on pages 25 and 26 and note 26 to the
financial statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Mr. LO Ying Shek

Madam LO TO Lee Kwan

Dr. LO Ka Shui

Mr. LO Kai Shui

Mr. Brian Shane McELNEY*

Mr. CHENG Hoi Chuen, Vincent*

Professor WONG Yue Chim, Richard*

Mrs. LEE Pui Ling, Angelina* (appointed on 15th May 2002)
Mr. LO Hong Sui, Antony

Madam LAW Wai Duen

Mr. LO Hong Sui, Vincent

Dr. LO Ying Sui, Archie

Mr. KAN Tak Kwong

* Independent Non-Executive Directors

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. Brian Shane McELNEY, Madam LAW Wai Duen and Mr. KAN Tak
Kwong shall retire from office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. They are all eligible for re-election. Mr.
Brian Shane McELNEY has decided to retire from the Board and therefore not to stand for re-election. The other
two retiring directors have offered themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each Independent Non-Executive Director is the period up to his retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ Interests in the Share Capital of the Company and Associated Corporations

As at 31st December 2002, the interests of the Directors and their associates in the shares of the Company and its
associated corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure
of Interests) Ordinance of Hong Kong (“SD! Ordinance”) were as follows:

|
Bitiiey
The Company  LO Ying Shek - - - 5,069,110
LO TO Lee Kwan - - - - -
LO Ka Shui 6,156,711 - 6,636,557 306,383,384 319,176,652
Note (5) Note (1)
LO Kai Shui - - 671,523 306,383,384 307,054,907
Note (6) Note (1)
Brian Shane McELNEY 14,000 - - - 14,000
CHENG Hoi Chuen, Vincent - 10,000 - - 10,000 ;
WONG Yue Chim, Richard - - - - - J
LEE Pui Ling, Angelina - - - - -
LO Hong Sui, Antony 2,769 - - - 2,769
LAW Wai Duen 238,402 - - 306,383,384 306,621,786
Note (1)
LO Hong Sui, Vincent 279 - - - 279
LO Ying Sui, Archie 3,805,046 3,662 300,000 306,383,384 310,492,092
Note (7) Note (1)
KAN Tak Kwong 314,503 - - - 314,503

Great Eagle Holdings Limited




Directors’ Interests in the Share Capital of the Company and Associated Corporations (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31st December 2002, movements of the share options granted to Directors (some are also
substantial shareholders) under the Company’s share option schemes as required to be disclosed according to Rule
17.07 of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules were as follows:

| Marbey of dharas |
Vepef  OvisEmding - 7 - Optens  OusEnding |
ee ef e ef opttens &t Oppfeng @ptions Oiens lansedion apdens &
options 900 gianted xegsed ancelled| T5/0a7200% Biliz082
| LO Ying Shek 1997 120,000 - - - (120,000) -
1998 300,000 - - - - 300,000
1999 120,000 - - - - 120,000
2000 130,000 - - - - 130,000
2001 180,000 - - - - 180,000
2002 - 150,000 - - - 150,000
850,000 150,000 - - (120,000) 830,000
LO Ka Shui 1997 120,000 - - - (120,000) -
1998 300,000 - - - - 300,000
1999 120,000 - - - - 120,000
2000 130,000 - - - - 130,000
2001 180,000 - - - - 180,000
2002 - 150,000 - - - 150,000
850,000 150,000 - - (120,000) 880,000
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ Interests in the Share Capital of the Company and Associated Corporations (Cont'd)

PR
N YN IS TR
SLUTET 8 ¥

‘ LO Kai Shui 1997 120,000 - - - (120,000) -
{ 1998 300,000 - - - - 300,000 |
} 1999 120,000 - - - - 120,000
2000 130,000 - - - - 130,000 |
” 2001 180,000 - - - - 180,000
: 2002 - 150,000 - - - 150,000
l 850,000 150,000 - - (120,000) 880,000
KAN Tak Kwong 1997 50,000 - - - (50,000) -
: 1998 450,000 - - - - 450,000 |
1999 25,000 - - - - 25,000
2000 50,000 - - - - 50,000
2001 130,000 - - - - 130,000
\ 2002 - 110,000 - - - 110,000
§ 705,000 110,000 - - {50,000) 765,000
Total: 3,255,000 560,000 ~ - {410,000) 3,405,000
Notes:

(1) Options granted in the years of 1997 to 1999 were granted under the previous Executive Share Option Scheme which
expired on 16th March 1999. Options granted in the years of 2000 to 2002 were granted under Great Eagle Holdings
Limited Share Option Scheme (formerly Executive Share Option Scheme ) adopted on 10th June 1998.

(2)  Consideration paid for each grant of option was $1.00.

(3)  The closing price of shares of $0.50 each of the Company (“Shares") quoted on the Stock Exchange on 25th January 2002,
being the business date immediately before the date (28th January 2002) on which share options were granted, was $8.35.

(4)  The share opticns granted are not recognised in the financial statements until they are exercised. The Directors consider that
it is not appropriate to disclose the value of options granted during the year, since any valuation of the above options would
be subject to a number of assumptions that would be subjective and uncertain.

* Further required particulars of share options granted in each year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Interests in the Share Capital of the Company and Associated Corperations (Cont'd)

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates had any interest in any securities of the
Company or its associated corporations as defined in the SDI Ordinance. Furthermore, none of the Directors nor
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year.

Substantial Shareholders’ interests in the Company

As at 31st December 2002, the following Shareholders, not being Directors of the Company, were recorded in the
register kept pursuant to Section 16(1) of SDI Ordinance as having an interest in 10% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company:

O 1
Name ef Sharehelder Number of shares Netes |
LO Hung Suen 306,383,384 (1) \
LO Wai Ki, Gwen 309,462,464 (1 ‘
Shui Sing Company, Limited 81,667,316 (2) ‘
Galtee Investment Limited 95,097,946 (2) :
Shui Sing Holdings Limited 255,380,375 (3)
Shui Sing (BVI) Limited _ 255,380,375 (3)
HSBC Group * | 306,747,369 @)

* HSBC Group included HSBC Holdings plc and its subsidiaries, namely, HSBC Bank plc, Midcorp Limited, Griffin International
Limited, HSBC Europe BV, HSBC Europe (Netherlands) BV, MSBC Private Banking Holdings (Suisse) SA and HSBC International
Trustee Limited.

Notes:

(1) The 306,383,384 shares of Dr. LO Ka Shui, Mr. LO Kai Shui, Madam LAW Wai Duen, Dr. LO Ying Sui, Archie and Madam LO
Hung Suen and 306,383,384 of the 309,462,464 shares of Madam LO Wai Ki, Gwen were the same parcel of shares.

2y The 81,667,316 shares held by Shui Sing Company, Limited and the 95,097,946 shares held by Galtee Investment Limited
duplicated with the interests described in Note (3). Both of these companies were direct wholly-owned subsidiaries of Shui
Sing (BVI) Limited which was a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Shui Sing Holdings Limited.

(3)  These 255,380,375 shares held by Shui Sing Holdings Limited and Shui Sing {BVI) Limited were the same parcel of shares and
were duplicated in the interests described in Note (1).

4y 306,383,384 shares of the 306,747,369 shares were the same parcel of shares as described in Note (1). HSBC International
Trustee Limited ("HKIT"), as trustee of a discretionary trust in which the persons mentioned in Note (1) are the beneficiaries,
were interested and/or deemed to be interested in the said 306,383,384 shares. The remaining shares were held by other
trusts for which HKIT and a Hang Seng Bank Limited's subsidiary acted as trustees.

(5)  The 6,636,557 shares were held by a company in which Dr. LO Ka Shui had entire interest.
(6)  The 671,523 shares were held by a company in which Mr. LO Kai Shui had entire interest.

(7)  The 300,000 shares were held by a company in which Dr. LO Ying Sui, Archie had entire interest.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

Save as disclosed under connected transactions below, no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Connected Transactions

Nomination of Nominated Sub-contractors under the Main Contract for the Mongkok Project

Renaissance City Development Company Limited (the “Developer”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a Main Contract dated 12th November 2001 (the “Main Contract”) with Sun Fook Kong Holdings
Limited (the "Main Contractor”) whereby the Developer appointed the Main Contractor for the construction of the
superstructure of the Mongkok Project comprising an office/retail/hotel complex and associated basement
excavation for the retail portion for a consideration of $3,110 million. The transaction constituted a discloseable
and connected transaction for the Company under the Stock Exchange Listing Rules and was disclosed in the 2001
Annual Report.

The Main Contract provides that the Developer will, through a competitive tendering process, designate nominated
suppliers and subcontractors to carry out certain works covered by the Main Contract. Pursuant to the Main
Contract and on 22nd April 2002, the Developer nominated (a) Sun Fook Kong E&M Management Limited as the
nominated sub-contractor for the sub-contract for HVAC and electrical installation and (b) Daido Steel Works &
Engineering Limited as the nominated sub-contractor for the sub-contract for plumbing, drainage and Town Gas
installation. The nominated sub-contractors are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Main Contractor. The Developer
made the nominations after a competitive tendering process for each of the sub-contracts, on the basis that the
nominated sub-contractors have submitted the lowest tenders for the relevant sub-contracts and on the basis of the
analysis of the tenders made by the architect, the quantity surveyor and the electrical and mechanical consultant of
the Mongkok Project.

The contract sums of the sub-contracts, being $279 million and $53 million respectively, have already been included
in the total contract sum of $3,110 million under the Main Contract.

As at 19th April 2002, certain members of the Lo Ying Shek family and their related trusts and companies (the “LYS
Group”) were interested in shares representing in aggregate approximately 63.06% of the issued share capital of
the Company. The Main Contractor was owned as to 95.92% and controlled by certain members of the LYS
Group. In view of the interest of the LYS Group in the sub-contracts, the nominations for the sub-contracts
constituted connected transactions for the Company under the Stock Exchange Listing Rules. An announcement
was made on 22nd April 2002 as required under the Listing Rules.

Arrangements to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Except for the Great Eagle Holdings Limited Share Option Scheme (formerly known as Executive Share Option
Scheme} established by the Company, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Service Contracts

There is no service contract with a Director which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensations).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws although there is no statutory restriction
against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the sales and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers were less
than 30% of total sales and purchases respectively.

Code of Best Practice

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31st December 2002 with the Code of Best Practice as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules.

Donations

Donations made by the Group for charitable and other purposes amounted to $212,795.

Auditors

A resolution to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
LO Ying Shek
Chairman

Hong Kong, 11th March 2003
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Notice of 2003 Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBRY GIVEN that the 2003 Annual General Meeting of Members of Great Eagle Holdings Limited
{"the Company") will be held at the Penthouse, Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on
Wednesday, 14th May 2003 at 3:00 p.m. for the purpose of transacting the following business:

As Crdinary Business

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31st December 2002.

2. To declare the payment of a Final Dividend.
3. To elect Directors in place of those retiring.

4. To fix a maximum number of Directors and authorise the Directors to appoint additional Directors up to such
maximum number.

5.  To fix Directors’ fees.

6.  To appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

As Special Business

7. To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without amendments, the following resclutions as Ordinary
Resolutions:

(A)  "THAT:

(@) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
during the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all the powers of the Company to purchase or
repurchase the shares of the Company (“Shares”), be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved,;

{b) the aggregate nominal amount of Shares which may be purchased or repurchased by the
Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, or on any other stock exchange on
which the Shares may be listed and recognised for this purpose by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited under the Hong
Kong Code on Share Repurchases, pursuant to the authority in paragraph (a) above, shall not
exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the Shares in issue at the date of
passing this Resolution, and the said authority shall be limited accordingly; and

(©) for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of the Company or the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended) (or any other applicable law of Bermuda) to be held; and
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(i) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this Resolution by an ordinary
resolution of the members of the Company in general meeting.”

{B) "THAT:

(a)

(c)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period (as
defined below) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional Shares
in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and options which
might require the exercise of such power be and it is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) above, shall authorise the Directors during the Relevant Period to
make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the exercise of such power
after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of Shares allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Directors pursuant to the
authority in paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue, (ii) the exercise
of rights of subscription or conversion under the terms of any warrants issued by the Company
or any securities which are convertible into Shares, (iii) any option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant or issue to officers and/or employees of
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries or any other participants of such option scheme or
arrangement of shares or rights to acquire Shares or {iv) any scrip dividend or similar
arrangement providing for the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on
Shares in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, shall not exceed the aggregate of: (aa)
20 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the Shares in issue at the date of passing this
Resolution plus (bb) (if the Directors are so authorised by a separate ordinary resolution of the
members of the Company) the aggregate nominal amount of Shares purchased or repurchased
by the Company subsequent to the passing of this Resolution (up to a maximum equivalent to
10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the Shares in issue at the date of passing this
Resolution), and the said authority shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of the Company or the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended) (or any other applicable law of Bermuda) to be held; and

(i) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this Resolution by an ordinary
resolution of the members of the Company in general meeting.
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Notice of 2003 Annual General Meeting

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the Directors to holders of
Shares or any class thereof on the register on a fixed record date in proportion to their then
holdings of such shares or class thereof (subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the
Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard
to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised
regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong Kong).”

(C) "THAT the Directors be and they are hereby authorised to exercise the powers of the Company referred
to in paragraph (a) of the resclution set out as Resolution No. 7(B) in the notice of this meeting in
respect of the share capital of the Company referred to in sub-paragraph (bb) of paragraph (¢) of such

Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
TSANG Yiu Wing, Peter
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 11th March 2003

Registered Office:
Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

Notes:

Principal Office:

33rd Floor, Great Eagle Centre
23 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above notice is entitled to appoint one or more
proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. In order to be valid, forms of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or
a notarially certified copy of that power of attorney or authority, must be deposited at 33rd Floor, Great Eagle Centre, 23
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the meeting or any

adjournment thereof.
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31st December 2002
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

20071
Notes S{600 $000
Turnover 2,589,540 2,677,251
Cost of goods and services {1,376,799, (1,394,426)
Gross profit 1,992,744 1,282,825
Other operating income 5 30,482 72,384
Administrative expenses {100,550} (122,583)
Other operating expenses {42,480} (109,473)
Profit from operations 6 1,080,193 1,123,153
Finance costs 7 {344,133} (463,569)
Share of results of associates 3,429 (13,263)
Profit before taxation 739,487 646,321
Taxation 9 {999,383) (108,279)
Profit after taxation 520,782 538,042
Minority interests {30,738} (30,743)
Profit attributable to shareholders 589,444 507,299
Dividends 10 87.447 121,213
Basic earnings per share 11 $1.02 $0.90
Diluted earnings per share 11 $4.02 $0.90
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Balance Sheets

At 31st December 2002
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2002 2001 2002

Assets

Non-current assets
Fixed assets 2,162,8% 27,809,250
Interests in subsidiaries 5,570,403 5,669,311
Interests in associates 13% 3,018
Other investments ' 4 23,409

Pledged bank deposits 5,850 95,414

28,766,380 | 27,931,091 3,570,405 5,669,311

Current assets

Inventories 17 5%,7389 57,050 - -
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 18 278,564 323,639 193 184
Bank balances and cash 82%,242 709,859 #,057 1,247

43,097 1,090,548 2,258 1,431

28,734,597 | 29,021,639 L 5,872,655 5,670,742

=94 - T w o - e T -
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THE GROUP THE COMPANY
i ] |
| 2002 | 2001 2001
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals 19 588,486 564,810 2,56 1,707
Provision for taxation 64,882 183,787 -
Borrowings due within one year 20 2,237,508 2,195,301 -
2,573,837 2,943,898 1,707
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings due after one year 20 10,803,785 | 10,155,374 -
Deferred taxation 21 298,839 173,470 -
59,048,924 | 10,328,844 -
13,889,787 | 13,272,742 1,707
Minority interests 543,972, 625,652 -
54,33L,¥33 | 13,898,394 1,707
Net assets 14,803,844 | 15,123,245 5,670,108 5,669,035
Represented by
Share capital 22 287,438 288,584 288,584
Reserves 23 4,397,355 | 14,834,661 3 5,380,451
Total shareholders’ funds 15,123,245 3, 5,663,035

The financial statements on pages 33 to 85 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

11th March 2003 and are signed on its behalf by:

LO Ka Shui

Director

LO Kai Shui

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st December 2002
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

Opening balance - total equity 53,145,24 17,502,340

Revaluation decrease in investment and hotel properties (3,022,372)

Revaluation decrease in other investments | (9,784} {11,555)

Exchange differences arising on translation of overseas operations 53§ (51,329)

Net loss not recognised in the income statement (1,572,861 (3,085,256)

Profit attributable to shareholders 588,44 507,299

Revaluation decrease released upon impairment loss

recognised in respect of other investments 95,383 -
Revaluation increase released upon disposal of
investment property - (34,756)

Release of contributed surpfus due to decrease in

shareholdings by minority shareholder - 249

| - £08.833 472,792

Dividends paid {208,853} {150,830)
Shares issued at prernium 54,827 384,265
Share issue expenses ) (66)
Closing balance - total equity | 14,803,844 15,123,245
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{Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31st December 2002
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

{ 2002 200 |
7 2000
1 S 0 ) @@wJ
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 739,487 646,321
Adjustments for:
Share of results of associates {3,629} 13,263
interest income {17,563} (36,293)
Interest expenses 338,177 424,834
Provision for premium on redemption of convertible bonds - 13,625
Dividends received from unlisted investments {294) (4,086)
Dividends received from listed investments {78; (74)
Profits on disposal of fixed assets - {26,099)
Allowance for doubtful debts 7,408 24,486
Depreciation on fixed assets 4,045 5,640
Amortisation on other assets - 3,230
Other assets written off - 3,395
Fitting-out works of investment and hotel properties written off 22,3410 32,439
Impairment loss recognised in respect of other investments 19,385 36,622
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 1,106,652 1,137,303
Decrease in inventories 5,918 1,221
Decrease in debtors, deposits and prepayments 48,831 169,463
Decrease in bills payables, creditors, deposits and accruals {18,029} (16,882)
Decrease in amounts due from associates - 18,072
Cash generated from operations 1,944,373 1,309,177
Interest paid {558,760} (615,652)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid {77,248} (75,809)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded - 33
Other jurisdictions tax paid {18,057} (60,484)
Other jurisdictions tax refunded 295 -
Net cash from operating activities 486,606 557,265
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

R j

Investing activities
Interest received 78,284 31,302
Dividends received from unlisted investments 884 7,303
Dividends received from listed investments 70 74
Dividends received from associates 250 4,934
Purchase of fixed assets £825,628; (1,356,715)
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets - 251,860
Acquisition of subsidiaries 24 (1,641,783)
Investments in associates (1,559)
Advance to an associate -
Capital return from other investment 3,350 11,699
Increase in other investments o (624)
Decrease in pledged deposits 53,824 8,742
Net cash used in investing activities 19V, 048) (2,684,767)
Financing activities
Dividends paid to shareholders 133,332) (67,494)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders - (109)
Issue of shares - 869
Share issue expenses Ny (66)
Change in equity holding and net repayment

to minority shareholders ) (242,125)
New bank loans raised 7,335 4,858,041
Repayments of bank loans (2,458, (1,022,756)
Redemption of convertible bonds - (1,204,136)
Net cash from financing activities 308,362 2,322,224
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents wgif‘;&‘) 194,722
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes 8,876 (17,644)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 738,384 532,316
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 398,378 708,394
Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent as previously reported - 609,394
Effect of reclassification of short-term bank loans - 100,000
Cash and cash equivalent as restated 518,378 709,394
Being:

Bank balances and deposits BR7, 247 709,859

Bank overdrafts 14,884} (465)

59,378 709,394

-~ - ' - .
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2002
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

1. General

The Company is a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are property development, property investment, hotel and restaurant
operations, trading of building materials, share investment, provision of management and maintenance
services, property management, insurance agency and sports club operation.

2. Adoption of Statements of Standard Accounting Practice/Changes in Accounting Policies

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, a number of new and revised Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice (SSAPs) issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. The adoption of these
SSAPs has resulted in the following changes in the Group’s accounting policies and the presentation of its
financial statements. In addition, the new and revised SSAPs have introduced additional disclosure
requirements which have been adopted in these financial statements.

Presentation of financial statements

The revisions to SSAP 1 (Revised) “Presentation of the financial statements” have introduced the new format
of presentation of the statement of changes in equity in the current year’s financial statements. The
presentation in prior year's financial statements has been restated in order 1o achieve a consistent
presentation.

Cash flow statements

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 15 (Revised) “Cash flow statements”. Under SSAP 15
(Revised), cash flows are classified under three headings — operating, investing and financing, rather than the
previous five headings. Interest and dividends, which were previously presented under a separate heading, are
classified as operating/investing/financing cash flows. Cash flows arising from taxes on income are classified as
operating activities, unless they can be separately identified with investing or financing activities. In additions,
the amounts presented for cash and cash equivalent have been amended to exciude short-term loans that are
financing in nature. The presentation in the prior year's cash flow statement has been restated in order to
achieve a consistent presentation.

Employee benefits

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 34 “Employee benefits”, which introduces measurement
rules and disclosure requirements for employee benefits, including retirement benefit plans. Because the
Group participates only in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes, the adoption of SSAP 34 did not
have any material impact on the financiat statements.




Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified for the
revaluation of investment and hotel properties and investments in securities and in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out
below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31st December each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances between group enterprises are eliminated on
consolidation.

Goodwill and negative goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value ascribed to the Group’s share
of the separable net assets at the date of acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate. Negative goodwill,
represents the excess over the purchase consideration of the fair value ascribed to the Group's share of the
separable net assets at the date of acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate. Goodwill is capitalised and
amortised over its estimated useful life. Negative goodwill will be released to income statement based on an
analysis of the circumstances from which the balance resulted.

Goodwill arising on the acquisitions of subsidiaries is presented separately in the balance sheet. Negative
goodwill arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries is presented as a deduction from non-current assets. Any
premium or discount arising on the acquisition of interests in associates, representing the excess or shortfall
respectively of the purchase consideration over the fair value ascribed 1o the Group’s share of the separable
net assets of the associates at the date of acquisition, is dealt with and included in interest in associates.

On the disposal of an investment in a subsidiary or an associate, the attributable amount of unamortised
goodwill or unreleased negative goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Turnover

Turnover represents the aggregate of gross rental income, income from hotel and restaurant operations,
proceeds from sales of building materials, property management and maintenance income, agency
commission and sports club operation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Revenue recognition

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance under operating leases, is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Hotel operation income is recognised upon the provision of services and the utilisation by guests of the hotel
facilities.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recagnised when the shareholder’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are held for their investment potential, any rental
income being negotiated at arm's length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market values based on professional valuations at the balance
sheet date. Any revaluation increase or decrease arising on the revaluation of investment properties is credited
or charged to the property revaluation reserve unless the balance on this reserve is insufficient to cover a
revaluation decrease, in which case the excess of the revaluation decrease over the balance on the property
revaluation reserve is charged to the income statement. Where a decrease has previously been charged to the
income statement and a revaluation increase subsequently arises, this increase is credited to the income
statement to the extent of the decrease previcusly charged.

On the disposal of an investment property, the balance on the property revaluation reserve attributable to the
property disposed of is credited to the income statement.

No depreciation is provided on investment properties except where the unexpired term of the relevant lease is
20 years or less.

Hotel properties

Hotel properties comprise interests in land and buildings and their integral fixed plant which are collectively
used in the operation of a hotel and are stated at their open market values based on professional valuations at
the balance sheet date.

It is the Group’s policy to maintain the hotel properties in such condition that their residual value is not
currently diminished by the passage of time and that any element of depreciation is insignificant. Therefore,
no depreciation charge is recognised in respect of its hotel properties. The related maintenance and repairs
expenditure is charged to the income statement in the year in which it is incurred.

l
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Notes to the Financial Statemerits

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Properties under development

Land and buildings in the course of development for sale, rental or administrative purposes or for purposes
not yet determined are carried at cost less any impairment loss considered necessary by the Directors. Cost
includes land ccsts, development costs, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs attributable to such
properties.

Properties under development which are intended to be held for the long term for their investment potential
are shown as non-current assets. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Properties under development which are intended to be held for sale will be treated as properties under
development for sale and are shown as current assets.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and eguipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment
losses.

No depreciation is provided to write off the cost of freehold land and properties under development.
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the term of the lease
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease, or 50 years
Furniture and fixtures, motor vehicles

and plant and machinery 20%

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Investments in subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an enterprise controlled by the Company.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment
loss.

investments in associates

An associate is an enterprise over which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence, through
participation in its financial and operating policy decisions.

The consolidated income statement includes the Group's share of the post-acquisition results of its associates
for the year. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group’s share of the
net assets of the associates less any identified impairment loss.

When the Group transacts with its associates, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associates, except where unrealised {osses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred.

Other investments
Investments in securities are recognised on a trade date basis and are initially measured at cost.

Where securities are held for trading purposes, unrealised gains or losses are included in net profit or loss for
the period. Investments in securities acquired other than for trading purposes are stated at fair value at the
subsequent reporting dates. Unrealised gains and losses arising on investments acquired other than for trading
purposes are dealt with in equity until the security is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is included in net profit or loss for the period.

Unlisted investments are accounted for as fixed return investments where the income to be derived from such
interests is predetermined in accordance with the provisions of the relevant agreements. Such investments are
initially recorded at cost. Payments receivable each year under the relevant agreements are apportioned
between income and reduction of the carrying value of the investments so as to give a constant pericdic rate
of return on the net investment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

43
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment ioss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the refevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that other accounting standard.

Where an impairment toss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another accounting standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase under that other accounting standard.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are initially recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions or at contracted settiement rates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in such currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and
losses arising ori exchange are dealt with in the income statement. Gains and losses arising on the translation
of foreign currency borrowings used to finance net investments in overseas operations are taken directly to
the exchange translation reserve.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas operations which are denominated in currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollar are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising on consolidation, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s exchange translation
reserve. Such translation difference are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which the
operation is disposed of.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-assessable or
disallowed. Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes of certain items of income and
expense in a different accounting period from that in which they are recognised in the financial statements.
The tax effect of timing differences, computed using the liability method, is recognised as deferred taxation in
the financial statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability or an asset will crystaliise in the
foreseeable future.

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the relevant leases.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
charged as expenses as they fall due.

Business and Geographical Segments
Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into the following operations:

Property leasing - rental income from leasing of properties.
Hotel operation - hotels and furnished apartments operations.
Other operations - property development, sales of building materials, restaurant operation,

provision of property management, maintenance and agency services,
provision of insurance agency services and sports club operation.

These operations are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Business and Geographical Segments (Cont’d)
Segment information about these businesses is presented below:
2002

F Propery etel

leasing operation Elirninetions Conseolidatee

|
|
|
"l

TURNOVER
External sales 795,464 1,524,917 2,569,540

Inter-segment sales 20,733 ‘ (49,722)

Total revenue 816,197 1,524,917 (49,722) 2,569,540

Inter-segment sales are charged at a mutually agreed price.
RESULT

Segment results 683,388 437,390 17,246 1,138,024

Unallocated corporate

expenses . (57,831)
Profit from operations 1,080,193
Finance costs (344,135)

Share of results of

associates 3,396 - 33 3,429
Profit before taxation 739,487
Taxation (119,305)
Profit after taxation 620,182
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Business and Geographical Segments (Cont’d)

2002 (Cont'd)

Other information

! leasing eperatien eperaions Conselicated {
Capital expenditure 180,361 40,184 1,119,989 1,340,534
Depreciation 21 39 4,885 4,945
Non-cash expenses other than l

depreciation 16,711 5,600 26,794 49,105
Balance sheet
! 7
| Hetel Cther |
i I€asinG eperation operatfons Consolideted |
ASSETS
Segment assets 12,930,422 8,193,941 7,988,668 29,113,031
Interests in associates 3,228 (3,097) 131
Unallocated corporate assets 21,435
Consolidated total assets 29,134,597
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 295,827 335,780 178,603 810,210
Unallocated corporate liabilities 13,179,571
Consolidated total liabilities 13,989,781

‘L Annual Report 2002 ’ 1) 4}7




Notes to the Pinancial Statements

Business and Geographical Segments (Cont’d)

2001

Property GIEl Odhar
leasing Ega operations Eiminetieons

-

TURNOVER
External sales 859,226 1,552,674 265,351 2,677,251

Inter-segment sales 11,920 36,690

Total revenue 871,146 1,552,674 302,041 2,677,251

Inter-segment sales are charged at a mutually agreed price.

RESULT

Segment results 810,663 439,341 25,214 1,275,218

Unallocated corporate

expenses (152,065)
Profit from operations 1,123,153
Finance costs (463,569)

Share of results of

associates 1,169 - (14,432) (13,263)
Profit before taxation 646,321
Taxation (108,279)
Profit after taxation 538,042
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Business and Geographical Segments (Cont’d)

2001 (Cont'd)

Other information

Proparty Hotal otz |
! leasing eperation operaons Consolidated |
Capital expenditure 2,755,686 74,115 694,886 3,524,687
Depreciation and amortisation 290 4,500 4,080 8,870
Non-cash expenses other than

depreciation 605 25,968 70,369 96,942
Balance sheet
t Prere tf’@;y Biotel Oxiher
| leasing operafion  eperedens Comselidated |
B §'000 5'000 5000 |
ASSETS
Segment assets 13,919,679 7,951,549 6,868,447 28,739,675
Interests in associates 16,148 - (13,130) 3,018
Unallocated corporate assets 278,946
Consolidated total assets 29,021,639
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 325,194 290,556 83,719 699,469
Unallocated corporate liabilities 12,573,273
Consolidated total liabilities 13,272,742

I
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Business and Geographical Segments (Cont’d)

Geographical segments

A geographical analysis of the Group's turnover and contribution to profit from operations, by geographical
market, is as foliows:

2002

Contribyiion t®

prefit frem

TUrnever epsratiens

SI000) SICUON

Hong Kong 2,252,827 B34, 788

North America 758,858 383,558
Europe 28,043 t00, 158 285,349 94,332
Asia Pacific, other than Hong Kong 259,588 83,074 244,341 57,438

2,559,360 3,L88,723 2,677,251 1,123,153

An analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to fixed assets by the geographical area in
which the assets are located is as follows:

Carrying amount

of segment assets Additions to fixed assets
| 2002 2001 2002 2001
Hong Kong 22,778,759 22,928,924 058,547 2,690,493
North America 3,563,821 3,589,117 817,108
Europe 1,855,213 1,641,521 6,873 12,160
Asia Pacific, other than Hong Kong 885,804 862,077 2,072 4,926
29,936,387 | 29,021,639 1,345,534 3,524,687
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5. Other Operating Income
2002 2001 |
J[ 5000 $'000 J
Included in other operating income are:
Dividends received from unlisted investments G54 4,086
Dividends received from listed investments 70 74
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - 26,093
Interest income 17,582 36,293
6. Profit from Operations

] 2002 2001 ‘
; 8600 - $'000 E
Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging:
Allowance for doubtful debts 7.E08 24,486
Amortisation on other assets - 3,230
Auditors’ remuneration 4,085 4,117
Depreciation on fixed assets 6,965 5,640
Fitting-out works of investment and hotel properties written off 22,390 32,439
Impairment loss recognised in respect of other investments 78,388 36,622
Net exchange loss 904 -
Operating lease payments on rented premises 7,357 2,187
Other assets written off - 3,395
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 558,798 564,208
and after crediting:
Rental income from investment properties less related outgoings 884,332 764,513
Net exchange gain - 1,053
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Notes to the Financial Statements

7. Finance Costs

I
}

2002 2001

$000 $'000

Interest on bank borrowings not wholly repayable within five years E 13,752
Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable within five years 393,514 508,535
Interest on other loan not wholly repayable within five years 49,292
Interest on other loans wholly repayable within five years 272 77,540
interest on convertible bonds 8,097
Amortisation on convertible bond issuing expenses 1,233
Provision for premium on redemption of convertible bonds 13,625
Other borrowing costs 57,625 35,665
Total borrowing costs 583,598 707,739
Less: Amount capitalised to property under development {248 455} (244,170)
344,135 463,569

> [ e ! et o
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8. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments

Directors’ emoluments

2002 |

2001
S100¢ $'000
Fees:
Directors 180 198
Independent Non-Executive Directors 53 44
233 242
Other emoluments:
Directors
Salaries and other benefits 12,600 12,945
Deemed benefits of share options granted (Note) - 1,211
Retirement schemes contributions 358 358
Independent Non-Executive Directors - -
12,958 14,514
13,181 14,756

b Ansual Report 2002
]

53




Notes to the Financial Statements

Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments (Cont’d)

Mr. CHENG Hoi Chuen, Vincent, an Independent Non-Executive Director, waived his director’s fee with effect
from the financial year 1998. Save as afore-mentioned, none of the Directors has waived the rights to receive
their emolumenrts.

2002

Nil to $1,000,000 8 7
$1,000,001 - $1,500,000 Z i
$1,500,001 - $2,000,000 - 1
$2,000,001 - $2,500,000 e -
$2,500,001 - $3,000,000 - 1
$3,000,001 — $3,500,000 < 1
$4,500,001 - $5,000,000 g -
$5,000,001 - $5,500,000 - 1
i3 12

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three (2001: three) were Directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining two
individuals were as follows:

[N

%
[N}
S
(@)
S
—

-
&
S
=
e
<
&
S

Salaries and other benefits 4,358 4,555
Deemed benefits of share options granted (Note) - 235

Retirement schemes contributions 72 165

£,57% 4,955

- ! .
54 ; Great Eagle Holdings Limited




8. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments (Cont’d)

2002 2008 |
Number of =~ Number of |

employess employees

|

Bands:

$2,000,001 - $2,500,000 7 1

$2,500,001 - $3,000,000 3 1
2 2

Note:

Under the Group’s share option scheme, share options have been granted to qualified Directors and employees. The deemed
benefits were arrived at by multiplying the difference between the subscription price and the open market closing price of
the Company’s shares at the date of granting of the share options by the number of shares convertible under the share
options granted during the relevant year.

8., Taxation

i ‘ ; 2002 2001
Company and subsidiaries:
Hong Kong 29,028 58,931
Other jurisdictions t5.899 49,039
Deferred taxation (note 21) 49,838 221
Share of taxation of associates:
Hong Kong 563 88
199,303 108,279

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16% (2001: 16%) of the estimate assessable profit for the year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

10. Dividends

|
|

Interim dividend at 5 cents per share on 582,978,151
shares (2001: 7 cents per share on 577,167,420 shares)
Proposed final dividend at 10 cents per share on 582,978,151
shares (2001: 14 cents per share on 577,167,420 shares)
Underprovision of 2000 final dividend at 20 cents

per share on 36,962 shares

2002

$000 -

87,447

121,213

A final dividend in respect of 2002 at 10 cents per share has been proposed by the Directors and is subject to

approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

11. Earnmings Per Share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the foliowing data:

!

5 2002
5{000]
Earnings
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share 58%,A44 507,289
il

Number of shares
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose

of basic earnings per share 530,484,850 565,761,014
Effect of dilutive potential shares:

Share options 87,773 846,198
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose

of diluted earnings per share 583,291,773 566,607,212

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise of certain of the Company’s
outstanding share options as the exercise prices of those options are higher than the average market prices of

the Company's shares for both 2002 and 2001.
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12. Fixed Assets

} ,’ s bl wdw | lndmd | md Wetw | Phmemd |
‘ ‘ | (regerdss fdevelopment [ Mo | velids medhinay et
THE GROUP
COSTAVALUATION
At 15t January 2002 13,530,341 7571484 | 6,699,619 44 62,532 4570 2,865 | 27871455
Exchange adjustments 33 282,641 - - - - - 282,964
Acquisition of subsidiaries 156,241 - - - - - - 156,241
Additions 24,095 40,162 | 1,109,154 - 10,757 - 125 | 1,184,293
Disposals/written off (16,710) (5,600) - - - {174) - {22,484}
Revaluation decrease (1,170,390} {73.084) - - - - - (1,243474)
At 31st December 2002 12523900 | 7815603 | 7808773 44 73,289 4,39 2990 | 28228995
DEPRECIATION
At 1st January 2002 - - - 10 56,09 3,294 2,805 62,205
Charge for the year - - - - 4341 557 4 4945
Eliminated on disposal - - - - - (174) - (174)
At 315t December 2002 - - - 10 60,437 3677 2852 86,976
NET BOCK VALUES
At 315t December 2002 12523900 | 7815603 | 7,808,713 H 12,85 719 138 | 28,162,019
At 315t December 2001 13,530,341 1571484 1 6,699,619 k2 6,436 1,276 60 | 27,808,250
Represented by:
At cost - - | 7808773 #7328 4,3% 2390 | 7889492
At valuation 12,523,900 | 7,815,603 - - - - - | 20,339,503
12523900 | 7815603 | 7,808,773 4 73,289 4,3% 2990 | 28,228,995
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Notes to the Financial Statements

12. Fixed Assets (Cont’d)

(a

Investment and hotel properties were revalued at 31st December 2002 on an open market value basis by
independent professional property valuers, except for properties located in USA, as follows:

Investment and hotel properties in Hong Kong — Chesterton Petty Ltd.

Hotel properties in United Kingdom — Chesterton Plc.

Hotel properties in Canada — Colliers International Realty Advisors Inc.

Hotel properties in Australia — CB Richard Ellis (V) Pty Ltd.

Hotel properties in New Zealand — CB Richard Ellis Hotels & Leisure Ltd.

Investment and hotel properties located in USA with a carrying value amounting to $1,715,000,000 and
$725,307,000 respectively at 31st December 2002 were valued by an employee of the Group, Mr. David
P. Crum, MAI Designated Members of Appraisal institute and CCIM Designated Member of Commercial
Investment Real Estate Institute in USA on an open market value basis.

The above-mentioned valuations have been adopted by the Directors in these financial statements and
the revaluation decrease arising on revaluation has been charged to property revaluation reserve.

(b) The carrying amount of investment properties includes lands situated in Hong Kong and outside Hong
Kong as follows:
: \
} 2002 2007 |
H ‘i o < ot :7:";#&
Long lease in Hong Kong 5,459,800 1,565,700
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong 8,347,900 10,283,500
Freehold land outside Hong Kong 9,715,680 1,681,141
©2,323,80¢ 13,530,341
(0)  The carrying amount of hotel properties includes lands situated in Hong Kong and outside Hong Kong as
follows:
’ 2002 2001 |
$000 $°000
Long leases in Hong Kong 328,500 381,000
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong 3,274,680 3,273,000
Freehold land outside Hong Kong 4,296,503 3,917,484
7,875,823 7,571,484
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12. Fixed Assets (Cont’d)
(d) Property under development

The property under development represents property situated in Hong Kong held under medium-term
lease.

Included in property under development are borrowing costs capitalised of approximately
$2,015,929,000 (2001: $1,769,474,000). The effective interest rate capitalised for the project during the
year was 3.8% (2001: 5.3%).

(e) Land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong and held under medium-term leases.

13. Interests in Subsidiaries
THE COMPANY

| ; 2002 2001 |
| S{600) §°000 |
{ _ \
Unlisted shares, at cost %.572,734 1,572,734
Amount due from a subsidiary 4,087,877 4,096,577
5,878,808 5,669,311

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment term. The Company
has agreed not to demand for repayment within the next twelve months from the balance sheet date and

accordingly, the amount has been classified as non-current.

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32.

14. Interests in Associates
THE GROUP
| 2002 2001
&l $000 $°000
Share of net assets: B
Unlisted associates {2.85% 3,018
Listed associate - -
Amount due from an associate ¢.992 -
134 3,018
Market value of listed securities 3,783 -

| Annud Report 2002
i

;
>
S

759




Notes to the Financial Statements

14. Interests in Associates (Cont’d)

The Group has agreed to make good the losses incurred by certain associates in full and accordingly, the
interest in associates included the Group’s share of the net liabilities of certain associates.

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment terms. The Group
has agreed not to demand for repayment within the next twelve months from the balance sheet date and
accordingly, the amount has been classified as non-current.

Particulars regarding the principal associates are set out in note 33.

15. Other Investments

THE GROUP
Fixed return investment in other regions of
the Peogle’s Republic of China, unlisted 7.7%% 11,696
Not-for-trading securities
Unlisted in Hong Kong 245 246
Listed in Hong Kong 15,773 11,467
12,824 1,713
19,820 23,409
Market value of listed securities 14,773 11,467

As an investee company operated at loss continuously, the directors determined that the investment is fully
impaired. Azcordingly, an impairment loss of $19,389,000 in respect of the investment was recognised in the
income statement during the year.

16. Pledged Bank Deposits

The pledged deposits have been placed in a designated bank as part of the securities provided for long-term
facilities granted to the Group.




17. Inventories

THE GROUP

2002 2001

S{06G %000

Completed properties for sale &2 42
Raw materials 28,844 29,472
Provisions and beverages 4,482 14,526
Work in progress 8,733 13,010
34,939 57,050

Included above are raw materials of $1,700,000 (2001: nil) carried at net realisable value.

18. Trade Debtors

The Group maintains a defined credit policy. For sales of goods, the Group allows an average credit period of
30-60 days to its trade customers. Rentals receivable from tenants and service income receivable from
customers are payable on presentation of invoices. The aged analysis of trade debtors is as follows:

THE GROUP
2002 2001
8000 $°000
0 - 3 months 39,744 140,372
3 - 6 months 91,887 16,123
Over 6 months 25,854 19,057
$772,25% 175,552
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19. Trade Creditors

The aged analysis of trade creditors is as follows:

THE GROUP

2002
$"000

0 - 3 months
3 - 6 months

Over 6 months

587 499

7,858 883

798,848 108,834

Great Eagle Hoidings Limited




20. Borrowings

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2002 | 2001 2002 2001 |
$E00 $000 $0eD §'000 |
Bank overdrafts (unsecured) 4,884 465 - -
Bank loans and revolving loans (secured) 19,085,808 10,686,145 - -
Bills payable 18,288 10,972 - -
Other long-term loans (secured) 1,738,234 1,653,093 - -
13,841,284 12,350,675 - -
The maturity of the above loans and
overdrafts is as follows:
On demand or within one year 2,227,508 2,195,301 - -
More than one year but not
exceeding two years 1,550,873 1,710,182 - -
More than two years but not
exceeding five years 5,398,458 7,264,175 - -
More than five years 2,654,414 1,181,017 - -
93,049,254 12,350,675 - -
Less: Amounts due within
one year shown under
current liabilities {3,737 ,5G8} (2,195,301) - -
Amounts due after one year 19,803,/85 10,155,374 - -

Secured bank loans include a loan of $3,310 million (2001: $3,490 million) obtained from a syndicate of
banks by an indirect subsidiary in which the Group has a 85.93% (2001: 85.93%) interest.

Other long-term loans bear interest at various rates and are repayable by instalments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

21. Deferred Taxation

THE GRCUP

2002
Balance at beginning of the year 173,470 173,289
Exchange adjustments 34 (40)
Charge for the year (note 9) 4%,838 221
Balance at end of the year 213,339 173,470

At the balance sheet date, the major components of deferred taxation liability, provided and unprovided, were

as follows:
PROVIDED UNPROVIDED

‘ 2002 2001 2002 2001
Deferred taxation relating to gain T

on disposal of overseas properties 59,3819 149,755 - -
Other timing differences 53,978 23,715 - -
Deferred taxation relating to the

revaluation of overseas properties - - 598,946 564,919

215,338 173,470 378,946 564,919
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21.

Deferred Taxation (Cont’d)

The amount of unprovided deferred taxation credit of the Group for the year was due to:

[
|

f 000 5600 |
Decrease arising from the revaluation of
overseas properties 43,973 229,151

Deferred taxation has not been provided on the revaluation increase or decrease of the Group’s properties in
Hong Kong and investments in securities not held for trading because profits arising on the disposal of these
assets would not be subject to taxation. Accordingly, the increase or decrease arising on revaluation does not
constitute a timing difference for tax purpose.

The Company did not have other significant deferred taxation assets or liabilities at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22. Share Capital

2002

Nurrber Nemina) '
of shares value

| 900

$e00

I
Nomina!

L .

(a) Authorised:
Shares of $0.50 each
Balance brought forward and

carried forward

800,000

Issued and fully paid:

Shares of $0.50 each

Balance brought forward 577,767 288,584 552,105 276,052
Issued in consideration for

the acquisition of subsidiaries - - 16,670 8,335
Issued upon exercise of

share options under the

Share Option Scheme - - 125 63
Issued as scrip dividends 3,849 2,903 8,267 4,134
Balance carried forward 582,978 251,489 577,167 288,584

During the year, 5,810,731 shares (2001; 8,267,512 shares) of $0.50 each in the Company were issued at

$9.40 (2001: $10.08) per share as scrip dividends.
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23. Reserves

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

B 2000 | 2001 2002 2005
} L Notes SL000 “; $°000 S{GO0N $00C
Share premium (a) 3,132,883 3,081,010 3,152,885 3,081,010
Property revaluation reserve {(b) 3,588,837 4,728,242 - -
investment revaluation reserve (c) {4,4248) {11,019) - -
Capital redemption reserve 1,850 1,650 9,650 1,650
Contributed surplus (d) 402,540 402,540 £28,253 426,203
Exchange translation reserve (e) {55,423} (131,961) - -
Retained profits ‘ f) 7,243,830 6,764,199 7,898,087 1,871,588

‘fB‘z_:-?bBJ 14,834,661 5,378,513 5,380,457

At the halance sheet date, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders amounted to
approximately $2,244,284,000 (2001: $2,297,791,000).

Notes:

(a) Share premium

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
| 2002 2007 2007
| 908 | $000 5080 §7000
Balance brought forward 3,881,090 2,709,343 3,089,090 2,709,343
Premium received on issue of shares 5%,7%8 371,733 51,716 371,733
Expenses on share issue 41} (66) (653 (66)
Balance carried forward 3,932,685 3,081,010 3,132,883 3,081,010
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Notes to the Financial Statements

23. Reserves (Cont’d)
(b) Property revaluation reserve

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

$008 | $000 . 53600

Balance breught forward £,728,2462 7,785,370
Exchange adjustments 4,338 (41,625)

Revaluation decrease during the year 143,283 (2,982,598)

Released upon disposal (34,756)

4,726,391

Share of associates

Revaluation increase during the year - 1,851 - -

Balance carried forward 3,583,837 4,728,242 J - -
{(c) Investment revaluation reserve
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

Balance brought forward 12,018 536 - -
Revaluation decrease during the year (9.784) (11,555) - -
Impairment loss recognised in

respect of other investments ’939‘5; - - -
Balance carried forward E2A, (11,019) - -

i’ 68 Great £agle Hoidings Limited |

,,,,,, — _ I |




23. Reserves (Cont’d)

(d) Contributed surplus

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
! 2001 | 2007
)i i S0 5000 5000 5000
Balance brought forward 432,540 402,291 428,202 426,203
Decrease in shareholdings
by minority shareholders - 249 - -
Balance carried forward 402,540 402,540 426,203 426,203

Contributed surplus represents the surplus arising under the Scheme of Arrangement undertaken by the Group in
1989/90. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus is available for distribution to

shareholders.

{e) Exchange translation reserve

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
; 2001 . 2001 |
Balance brought forward {131,861} (80,632) - -
Exchange adjustment on translation of
net overseas investments 108,372 (46,530) - -
Net exchange loss on forward contracts {26,334} (4,799) - -
Balance carried forward {55,423} (131,961) - -

Arvwiel Roport 2002
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Notes to the Financial Statements

23. Reserves (Cont’d)

(f) Retained profits

THE | THE

l : f
| GROUP . COMPANY
| ‘

Balance at 1st January 2001 6,407,730 1,868,854
Profit for the year 507,299 153,564

Dividends paid (150,830) (150,830}

Balance at 1st January 2002 6,764,199 1,871,588
Profit for the year 589,444 56,446

Dividends paid (109,953) (109,953)

Balance at 31st December 2002 7,243,690 1,818,081

The retained profits of the Group included $3,177,000 (2001: $438,000) retained by associates of the Group.

24. Acquisition of Subsidiaries

On 25th June 2002, the Group had completed the acquisition of additional 50 per cent interest in Pacific 888,
LLC, an associate of the Group. Pacific 888, LLC became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group thereafter.

On 28th June 2001, the Group acquired 100 per cent of the issued share capital of Garden Road (BVI) Limited
and CitiRealty (BV!) Limited.
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24. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

The transactions have been accounted for by the acquisition method of accounting.

|

2001
52000 $'000 |
Net assets acquired:
Fixed assets 156,244 1,945,780
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 5,883 524
Bank balances and cash 4,058 -
Creditors, deposits and accruals £2,934} (210)
Borrowings {114,136} ~
Provision for taxation - (4,251)
52,182 1,941,843
Interest previously acquired as an associate {15.628) -~
Total consideration 36,560 1,941,843
Satisfied by:
Shares allotted - 300,060
Cash consideration 36,566 1,641,783
36,566 1,941,843
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition
Cash consideration {36,568) (1,641,783)
Bank balances and cash acquired 4,058 -
Net outfiow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the purchase of subsidiaries {32,508) (1,641,783)

The subsidiary acquired during the year contributed approximately $12,166,000 to the turnover and
approximately $1,250,000 to the profit before taxation of the Group for the period between the date of
acquisition and the balance sheet date. The subsidiary acquired during the year had no significant impact on

cash tlows of the Group for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

25. Major Non-Cash Transaction

During the year, 5,810,731 shares of $0.50 each in the Company were issued at $9.40 per share as scrip
dividends.

Share Qption Scheme

In accordance with the Great Eagle Holdings Limited Share Option Scheme (formerly Executive Share Option
Scheme) (the "Scheme") of the Company, which was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
10th June 1999 and was amended by an ordinary resolution passed on 20th December 2001, the Board of
Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible employees, including executive directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

Summary of the Scheme

a.  The purpose of the Scheme is to motivate officers, employees, associates, agents and contractors of the
Company or any subsidiary and to allow them to participate in the growth of the Company.

b.  Participants of the Scheme include any person the Board may select to be offered an option, subject to
compliance with applicable laws, including, without limitation, any fuli-time or part-time employee of
the Company or any subsidiary, any executive or non-executive director of the Company or any
subsidiary and any associate, agent or contractor of the Company or any subsidiary.

¢.  The maximum number of shares of $0.50 each of the Company (the “Shares”) in respect of which
options may be granted (together with options exercised and options then outstanding) under the
Scheme, when aggregated with any number of Shares subject to any other schemes, will be such
number of Shares as shall represent 10% of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of
adoption of the Scheme. Excluding the number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of the outstanding
options granted under the previous share option scheme, the total number of Shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 54,127,853 Shares, representing approximately 9% of the Company’s issued share
capital as at 10th March 2003, the latest practicable date before the approval of these financial
statements.

d.  No option may be granted to any one Participant under the Scheme which if exercised in full would
result in the total number of Shares already issued and issuable to him under all the options previously
granted and to be granted to him in any 12-month period up to the proposed date of the latest grant
exceeding 1% of the Company's Shares in issue.

e.  The period within which the Shares must be taken up under an option is 36 months commencing on the
expiry of 24 months after the date upon which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and
expiring on the last day of the 36 months’ period.

f. The minimum period within which an option must be held before it can be exercised is the 24 months
referred to in paragraph (e) above.

g. Any participant who accepts an offer of the grant of an option in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme shall pay to the Company $1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof within a period of
28 days from the date on which an option is offered to the participant.
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26. Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Summary of the Scheme (Cont'd)

of a Share.

such holdings during the year:

The scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 10th June 2009.

h.  The subscription price, the price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares on the exercise
of an option, shall be the higher of (i) the last dealt price of the Shares quoted in The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited's (the “Stock Exchange”) daily quotations sheets on the date of offer of an opticn,
which must be a business day (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Stock Exchange Listing Rules”)), and (ii) the average of the last dealt prices of the Shares
quoted in the Stock Exchange's daily guotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the said offer date, provided that the subscription price shall in no event be less than the nominal value

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share options held by employees and movements in

| ! Nummles ef sheres
| ' Outstending | | Optiems  Outsteanding
Year of | eptfoms &t { . lpseden | opfomsan
‘ - Ustlemuay  Optfens ' Optess ©U5th Apdl - 39st Decsmilber
| : 202 ©  gented | owerdsed - caneslied 2002
654,000 - - - (654,000) -
1,611,000 - - - - 1,611,000
509,000 - - - - 509,000
723,000 - - (12,000) - 711,000
1,104,000 - - (37,000) - 1,067,000
- 987,000 - (17,000) - 970,000
4,601,000 987,000 - (66,000) |  (654,000) 4,868,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26. Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Details of the share options held by the directors included in the above table are as follows:

Nuamleer 6f shares

| Quistanding Opttens | Ouistanding
Veay of opffens 2 ‘ " lapsedon .  eptiensat
@rant of Tt Jemuany | Opiions - Optiens Outdors 15t Aprt] | 390 Decerber |
options 2002 granted ,  eserdsed  camesled - ‘ RO
1997-2002 3,255,000 560,000 - - {410,000) 3,405,000

Details of Options granted in each year are as follows:

& . Subseripiion

| Vear grant Viesting period Exerdse peried | shere |

j (%)
1997 15/04/1997 15/04/1997 - 15/04/2002 16/04/1999 - 15/04/2002 21519
1998 22/01/1998 22/01/1998 - 22/01/2003 23/01/2000 ~ 22/01/2003 6.912
1999 12/03/1999 12/03/1999 ~ 12/03/2004 13/03/2001 - 12/03/2004 7.020
2000 14/02/2000 14/02/2000 - 14/02/2005 15/02/2002 — 14/02/2005 10.116
2001 16/01/2001 16/01/2001 - 16/01/2006 17/01/2003 ~ 16/01/2006 13.392
2002 28/01/2002 28/01/2002 - 28/01/2007 29/01/2004 - 28/01/2007 8.440

Notes:

(i) Options granted in the years of 1997 to 1999 were granted under the previous Scheme which expired on 16th March
1999, Options granted in the years of 2000 to 2002 were granted under the Scheme of the Company adopted on
10th June 1939.

(i) Consideration paid for each grant of option was $1.00.

(ii)  No charge is recognised in the income statement in respect of the value of options granted during the year.
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27.

28.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and
overseas. In Hong Kong, the Group operates several defined contribution schemes for qualifying employees.
The schemes are registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the schemes
are administered by independent third parties and are held separately from the Group's assets. The schemes
are funded by contributions from both employees and employers at rates ranging from 5% to 10% of the
employee’s basic monthly salary. Arrangements for staff retirement benefits of overseas employees vary from
country to country and are made in accordance with local regulations and custom.

The Occupational Retirement Scheme in Hong Kong had been closed to new employees as a consequence of
the new Mandatory Provident Fund Pension Legislation introduced by The Government of Hong Kong Special
Administration Region in 2000.

From 1st December 2000 onwards, new staff in Hong Kong joining the Group are required to join the new
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. The Group is required to contribute 5% to 10%, while the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their salaries to the Scheme.

Forfeited contributions to retirement schemes for the year ended 31st December 2002 amounting to
$1,640,000 (2001: $2,149,000) have been used to reduce the existing leve! of contributions. Total
contributions to retirement fund schemes for the year ended 31st December 2002 charged to the income
statement amounted to $22,916,000 (2001: $23,119,000). As at 31st December 2002, contributions of
$1,558,000 (2001: nil) due in respect of the year had not been paid over to the schemes.

Pledge of Assets

At 31st December 2002, the Group’s properties with a total carrying value of approximately $28,125,000,000
(2001: $27,773,000,000) together with assignments of sales proceeds, insurance proceeds, rental income,
revenues and all other income generated from the relevant properties and deposits of approximately
$4,610,000 (2001: $95,414,000) were mortgaged or pledged to secure credit facilities granted to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

29,

30.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
THE GROUP

At 31st December 2002, the Group had commitments and contingent liabilities not provided for in these
financial statements, as follows:

(@) estimated expenditure in respect of property under development amounting to approximately
$2,947,040,000 (2001: $3,706,690,000) of which approximately $2,456,792,000 (2001:
$3,255,261,000) were contracted for;

(b) authorised capital expenditure amounting to approximately $74,380,000 (2001: $43,537,000) of which
approximately $13,331,000 (2001: $18,804,000) were contracted for; and

(©) commitments under foreign exchange future contracts to sell approximately $154,310,000 (2001:
$143,854,000) at fixed exchange rates.

THE COMPANY

At 31st December 2002, the Company had issued corporate guarantees to certain banks and financial
institutions in respect of credit facilities drawn by its subsidiaries amounting to approximately $9,915,088,000
(2001: $9,248,050,000).

Other than set out above, the Group and the Company did not have any significant commitments and
contingent liabilities at 31st December 2002.

Operating Lease Arrangements
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was $795,464,000 (2001: $859,226,000). The property held
has committed leases typically running for one to six years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease
payments in respect of investment properties which fall due as follows:

2002

©
Y

20
Within one year 758,025 725,530
In the second to fifth years inclusive 814,253 1,015,624
After five years 4%,37S 32,222
1,571,857 1,773,376
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30. Operating Lease Arrangements (Cont’d)

The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments under non-cancellabie operating leases

in respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

2002 - 2001

$000 000 |
Within one year 832 1,812
In the second to fifth years inclusive 5,822 887
2,374 2,699

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases are

typically running for one to three years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Related Party Transactions

The Group had the following significant related party transactions during the year and balances at balance

sheet date with certain companies in which certain shareholders and directors of the Company have beneficial

interest. The transactions were carried out in the normal course of the Group’s business on terms mutually

agreed between the parties.

;
!
i
\

Transactions for the year ended 31st December
Trading income
Rental income
Management fee received
Rental charges paid for Director’s accommodation
Cost and expenses incurred for demolition and foundation work
Balances as at 31st December
Amount due from an associate (see note 14)
Debtors, deposits and prepayments

— Related parties
Creditors, deposits and accruals

— Related parties

— Associates

)
©
)

&

v

@

A

)
&
S

19,227
2,114
240
2,400

236,396

16,909

34,169

3,224
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32. Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2002 are set out below:

I , !T‘
f §, : fesued equity |
| shre eapitel |
| ; endpeid oy by e |
| Direct sulbsiciasy o equity shers capliel  Prindipel acdivity Company |
- incorporated and operating in
the British Virgin Islands:
Jolly Trend Limited 2 shares of US$1 each Investment holding 100%
i | .
S i Pereantage ef ;
| feswed equity |
\ : ;i share eapital i
f  bsvedeandpaldup held by the |
| Incirect subsicharies cqufy shere capital | Principel activites Compan |
- incorporated and operating
in Hong Kong:
Bon Project Limited 2 shares of HK$1 each Property investment 100%
Capital Win Development Limited 2 shares of HK$1 each Property investment 100%
Chance Mark Limited 2 shares of HK$1 each Property investment 100%
Clever Gain Investment Limited 2 shares of HK$1 each Restaurant operation 100%
CP {Portion A) Limited 2 shares of HK$1 each Property investment 100%
CP (Portion B) Limited 2 shares of HK$1 each Property investment 100%
Ease Billion Development Limited 2 shares of HK$1 each Property investment 100%
Easy Wealth Limited 2 shares of HK$1 each Property investment 100%
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32. Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

T

|

Principel acivities

share eapital

held by the
Caompany |

- incorporated and operating
in Hong Kong (Cont'd):

Eaton House International Limited

Fortuna Wealth Company Limited
G E Advertising Agency Limited
Gold Epoch Investment Limited

Grow On Development Limited

Harvest Star International Limited
Keysen Engineering Company,
Limited

Longwaorth Management Limited

Million Prime Company Limited

Maon Yik Company, Limited

Panhy Limited
Renaissance City Development

Company Limited

2 shares of HK$10 each

2 shares of HK$1 each
2 shares of HK$1 each
2 shares of HK$1 each
5,000 shares of

HK$1 each
2 shares of HK$1 each

2 shares of HK$1 each

10,000 shares of
HK$1 each

2 shares of HK$1 each

10,000,000 shares of
HK$1 each

2 shares of HK$1 each

2 shares of HK$10 each

Management of
furnished apartments
Property investment
Advertising agency
Property investment

Hotel operation

Hotel operation

Maintenance services

Property management

Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

Property development

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

T Great tagle Holdings Limited
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32. Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

lesued equiy |
sued and peid wp | el by Ge |
indlres: subsidiarics | equfy share cepital ¢ Princpal acdivities Company ;
- incorporated and operating
in Hong Kong (Cont'd):
Selex Properties Management 2 shares of HK$1 each Property management 100%
Company, Limited
Strong Dynamic Limited 2 shares of HK$1 each Sports club operation 100%
The Great Eagle Company, Limited 2,000,000 shares of Investment holding 100%
HK$0.5 each
The Great Eagle Development and 2 shares of HK$10 each Project management 100%
Project Management Limited
The Great Eagle Engineering 2 shares of HK$1 each Maintenance services 100%
Company Limited
The Great Eagle Estate Agents 2 shares of HK$10 each Real estate agency 100%
Limited
The Great Eagle Finance 100,000 shares of Loan financing 100%
Company, Limited HK$100 each
The Great Eagle Insurance 1,000 shares of Insurance agency 100%
Company, Limited HK$1 each
The Great Eagle Properties 100,000 shares of Property management 100%
Management Company, Limited HK$1 each
Toptech Co. Limited 600,000 shares of Trading of building 100%

HK$1 each

materials
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32. Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Indirect subsielaries

. feswes equity

el ey dhe
Company

|
i
|
|
i

- incorporated and operating

in Hong Kong (Cont'd):
Venus Glory Company Limited
Well Charm Development Limited
Worth Bright Company Limited

Zamanta Investments Limited

Maple Court Limited

Missleton Finance Limited

Shine Hill Development Limited

- incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and operating in
United Kingdom:

Great Eagle Hotels (UK) Limited

—~ incorporated and operating
in Canada:

Great Eagle Hotels {Canada)

Limited

2 shares of HK$1 each
2 shares of HK$1 each
2 shares of HK$1 each
100 shares of
HK$10 each
2 shares of HK$1 each
1,000,000 shares of
HK$1 each
1,000,000 shares of

HK$1 each

1 share of US$1

10 common shares of

C$%1 each

Property investment
Property investment
Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

Loan financing

Property investment

Hotel operation

Hotel operation

100%

100%

100%

100%

85.93%

85.93%

85.93%

100%

100%
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32. Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

H

l

|

|
|
|
|

‘ Indirec¥stbsidianies

‘  ane palel up
. equlty share eapial

 Principal acivities

of
cquity
glhare eapital
el by dhe
Company

- incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and operating in Australia:
Katesbridge Group Limited
- incorporated and operating
in Austratia:
Southgate Hotel Management
Pty. Ltd.
— incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and operating in New Zealand:
Great Eagle Hotels (New Zealand)
Limited
- incorporated and operating
in New Zealand:
Great Eagle Hotels (Auckland)

Limited

1 share of US$1

17,408 shares of

A$2 each

1 share of US$1

1,000 shares of no

par value

[nvestment holding

Hotel operation

Property investment

Hotel operation

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

32. Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

i ' @@P@Oﬂﬂﬁ@g@ of ;
, fesued egulity

| ‘ | . share cpitel

‘ - Iesued and paid up - (helld by the

| Inalieet subsicharies | cquity share capital | Brincpal activities Company

- incorporated and operating in USA:
* EIH Properties Company US$1,000 Property investment

- XX, LLC

* Pacific Dolphin Corporation 100 shares of Property investment

no par value

* Pacific Spear Corporation 100 shares of Property investment 100%

US$0.001 each

* Pacific Ygnacio Corporation 100 shares of Property investment 100%
no par value

* Pacific 888, LL.C US$4,850,000 Property investment 100%

* Shorthills NJ, Inc. 100 shares of US$1 each Property investment 100%

Note: All these subsidiaries have no debt securities subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
* Companies not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive
length and therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries which principally affect the
results or assets and liabilities of the Group.
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33.

Particulars of the Principal Associates

Details of the Company's principal associates at 315t December 2002 are set out below:

eeuity
| ;; " Shaiefeapifal
] ; and pald v 4 by the |
| lndiraet . eeuiy shere capital | Principal activities Company |
L i
* City Apex Limited 1,000 of US$1 each Investment holding 28.57%
Panda-Recruit Limited 1,125,000,000 of Investment holding 34.04%
HK$0.05 gach and publishing
* Company not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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Appendix I

List of Major Properties

At 31st December 2002

{a) Property under development

lfocation

develepmant

Epecing |

- Appronimete | completion

~

datel

Gielipss! (

KIL No. 11099 at the
junction of
Argyle Street/
Shanghai Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Office/
Commercial/

Hotel

The super-structural
waork is in full swing,
with office tower,
retail block and the

hotel all over 50%

J completed

129,000

1,761,000

1st Quarter

2004

100%

Income *

*  Subject to certain rights of Urban Renewal Authority.
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(b) Properties held for long-term investment

i

i ‘ Apprenimate | Greups
Neme and | Use el imterests
l ; _ (sg.ft)
ON LAND UNDER LONG LEASE
Apartment Tower on the Western Apartments 10,000 100%
Side of Convention Plaza,
-1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong
Eaton House, Nos. 3 -5 Furnished apartments 35,000 100%
Wanchai Gap Road,
Hong Kong
Eaton House, 100 Blue Pool Road, Furnished apartments 34,000 100%
Hong Kong
Great Eagle Centre, Commercial/Office 270,000 100%
23 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong
ON LAND UNDER MEDIUM-TERM LEASE
Citibank Plaza, 3 Garden Road, Commercial/Office 1,227,000 85.93%
Hong Kong Office 303,000 100%
Concordia Plaza Office 28,000 100%
1 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Annual Report 2002 87




Appendix I

List of Major Properties

(b) Properties held for long-term investment (Cont’'d)

f

|

|

fieor anea

S

Grewg's

ON LAND UNDER MEDIUM-TERM
LEASE (Cont'd)

Eaton House, 4H Village Road,
Hong Kong

Eaton Hotel, 380 Nathan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Great Eagle Hotal
8 Peking Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Furnished apartments

Hotel/Commercial

Hotel/Commercial

312,000

364,000

100%
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(b) Properties held for long-term investment (Cont’'d)

Namefandliocation

Appreimete
alea)

tze G400
(SURI

Grovps
HEERESES)

ON FREEHOLD LAND
The Langham Hilton
1 Portland Place,
Regent Street, London
WIN 4JA,
United Kingdom
Delta Chelsea Hotel
33 Gerrard Street West,
Toronto, Ontario M5G 124,
Canada
Sheraton Towers Southgate Hotel
One Southgate Avenue,
Southbank, Melbourne,
Victoria 3006, Australia
Sheraton Auckland Hotel
and Towers
83 Symonds Street,

Auckland 1, New Zealand

Hotel/Commercial

Hotel/Commercial

Hotel/Commercial

Hotel/Commercial

373,000

1,130,000

385,000

309,000

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Appendix [

List of Major Properties

(b) Properties held for long-term investment (Cont’d)

Appreximate Grown’s
Name and lecatleon ‘ jse flear ares tENests

‘& B
SO T

ON FREEHOLD LAND (Cont'd)

Pacific Ygnacio Plaza Office 121,000
500 Ygnacio Valley Road,
Walnut Creek, CA 94596,
USA

Hotel Le Meridien Hotel/Commercial 281,000

250 Franklin Street,
Boston, MA 02110,
USA

353 Sacramento Street Commercial/Office 307,000 100%
353 Sacramento Street,
San Francisco, CA 94111,
USA

150 Spear Street Commercial/Office 257,000 100%
150 Spear Street,
San Francisco, CA 94105,
USA

888 West Sixth Street Commercial/Office 99,000 100%
888 West Sixth Street,

Los Angeles, CA 90017,

USA
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Appendix 11

Five Years’ [Financial Summary

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

1.10.1997 |

o For the year endec 31st December
 31.92.9998 1999 2000 2007 2002
RESULTS
Turnover 3,850,619 2,888,827 2,899,181 2,677,251 2568540
Profit from operations less
finance costs 1.,333,357 804,692 775,034 659,584 FRG 058
Share of results of associates 8,063 6,559 (11,787) (13,263) 5,444
Profit before taxation 1,341,420 811,251 763,247 646,321 FEa 457
Taxation (96,243) (97,015) (99,630) {108,279) 195,305}
Profit after taxation 1,245,177 714,236 663,617 538,042 620,182
Minority interests (108,009) (68,912) (40,664) (30,743) {20,738}
Profit attributable to
shareholders 1,137,168 645,324 622,953 507,299 SHY 444
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets 27,421,215 | 28,032,514 | 29,291,891 | 28,021,639 | 73,134,597
Total liabilities (11,318,680)] (10,424,342)| (10,753,002)| (13,272,742) |{1%,335,75%)
Minority interests (1,595,595) (1,691,399) (1,036,549) (625,652) IRAD 973}
Shareholders’ funds 14,508,940 15,816,773 17,502,340 15,123,245 | <4 &33 844
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Report of the Auditors

== ﬁ: =
B -B=EISESEENT
Certified Public Accountants EBTETHEEP IR
26/F, Wing On Centre KEZDIN26iE

L101ngc;(nor;)agught Road Central @@U@ﬁﬁﬁ@
Touche
Tohmatsu

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GREAT EAGLE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 33 to 85 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair view.
In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report our
opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the
Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of
the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group as at 31st December 2002 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 11th March 2003
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Shareholders’ Calendar

e  Closure of Transfer Books:

~  from 6th May 2003 to 14th May 2003 (both days inclusive)

e 2003 Annual General Meeting:

— 14th May 2003

* Dividends:
- Interim : HKS cents per share

Date of Payment  : 24th October 2002

- Final : HK10 cents per share
~  scrip dividend with cash option

Date of Payment : 16th June 2003
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0—3@A 139,744 140,372
3-6fEA 11,661 16,123
68 A L Lk 20,854 19,057
172,252 175,552
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19. BEEF
BERFREINUT :

FED

| ‘=s@=2 =33-%

| i % F5 |
0-318A 117,451 107,452
3-6fA8 697 499
68 A B Lk 1,698 883
119,846 108,834

- omEEG - 7149




g e

RITEX (BIRH)
RITBERBERER (BEM)
BN RE

HiREEE (FER)

465
10,686,145
10,972

1,653,093

LEEEREX ZEBBERMT

s —F R
BE-FEBTZRWEF
HEWMFBETEZRESF
TFUE

R FRIMLEE
ERBAEEA

—FHUEEBzEER

o s

12,350,675

2,195,301

1,710,182 |

7,264,175

1,181,017

12,350,675

(2,195,301)

GO GRoNth YER e

P SwE, foD

10,155,374

BEARTEEERE-F5H%3,310,000,000Tt ZER (ZBZ—F  3,490,000,0007T) + &%
RER-EAEERS.93% (ZTF—F 1 8593%) BB ZHEMBAAICRERS -

HitRBEERTESRFAEL A HEE -
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21, REHIR

FEH
—gs=x :%%w§;
| % Fxr |
EXETT 173,470 173,289
Rk 31 (40)
ErEin (K859 44,838 221
ERETF 215,33¢ 173,470
REER  BESE FHERRRFLHER BEUTEEERA ¢
EHEE RAEH BB
|  =gS=%  -S8-% =S8=% =-55-%
EHEBIIMIEFFBRET
Z BRI 158,361 149,755 - -
Hunbs= 55,078 23,715 - -
HEBNMIEXBERZELERE - - 518,946 564,919
215,339 173,470 518,946 564,919
i T B IR I P 151
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21, IBERIE (&)
REEXR AEEBREHBEERBEFRD> Z2EBENT

1
]
1

BEMBINIEMBRD 43,873 229,151

EHEAKEERTECMERFAEERS cREBEAMY - L EMGZESEERG 2 E MR
DURBEEFBELES - Bt EAMSIEZBMBBALPERBALTEREE o

AARANGEERYEHMEREERE2EENRE -




—g2=¢ —3T-&

|
|
|
|
1

(@)

RESE B2 RGES TE |
TR FH T FR
FEEES
SRMEEO.50T R 7
RLEERFRBELE
TEE 860,000 400,500 800,000 400,000
RITRBRRE
EREESOTR M
REFESERF 577,167 288,584 552,105 276,052
U BB Hr B 0 B M 84T
ZHRERG - - 16,670 8,335
BB BT EBE
EE:Sopd: 87 - - 125 63
LR E 5,841 2.36% 8,267 4,134
BEFETHE 582,878 791,489 577,167 288,584

RER > AATUERUBARERHILOT (ZEE—F 1 10.087T) 175,810,731 (=&

E—F 18,267,512 BREEOSOTTIRT ©
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B % B W

|
i
}
|
!

RAGE 3,932,883 | 3,081,010
MR E L .63 4,728,242
KREEMHE 4243 (11,019)
=N R %.650 1,650
EEA R 102,540 402,540
R i (53,423} (131,961)
RE &R (f)

Ty,
[
3
s
o
Wy
€2

 2403,85% 6,764,199 1.8%8,087% 1,871,588

54,212,355 | 14,834,661 5,378,81¢ 5,380,451

REER  AARARBEFREEES2,244,284,000t (ZBEE—F : 2,297,791,0007T) °

(@) BRFRE

" ER = fw = &5 &R = == = fm = IR &R |

- ZEEg . E2B-=% 882§ =Z8Z-%

* F R TR F% FR
REFEER 2,081,010 2,709,343 3,084,040 2,709,343
RITRBZRE 51,715 371,733 59,716 371,733

RiITRO Z2XH i3 (66) & (66)

BEEETEE 3,132,885 3,081,010 3,132,685 3,081,010




23. i (@)
(b) MEREMMEHS

| | =99=5 | =8e-F =88=F =¥L-§
§ i FR | TR T %i}
RIEEER £, 7P8,242 7,785,370 - -
ELRRE &,358 (41,625) - -
FREM/AD (9,943,283 (2,982,598) - -
HERE - (34,756) —~ -
FEiL e A R 3,588,537 4,726,391 - -

FREMGEM - 1,851 - -
BRRAEBTEE 3,338,837 | 4,728,242 - -

(60 REEHRAB
EEE EQF)

| ' =88z%  =88-% = =8T=8 =3T-§ |
ARLEEER {11,318 536 - -
FREMED {9,784} (11,555) ~ -
BECBTEE {9,424 (11,019 - -

S

155




o % & 3

23. #4 (8)
d) CHARS

+t
i
)
+
]
ai

= ZD &R = &= = R ED .. |F = GE Fp = A% = 0GR -y
=B =BE=5 =& —BEH=45
@ = === = = T =
F X 5% T

BN
')
2
)
@

3]

_
~
N
(@2}

[ )
)
w

RELFEER 432,540 402,291

LAY

LEBRRRERMG - 249 ~ -

BHRELHETER £73,540 402,540 E36.203 426,203

ERARKRNARER-NANER-ANEEFHETHEFESHELEZBR - RE-AN-F8
REQNEE  ZCHARBYIRBFRR -

() ERMEE

TEH

+#
]
I

\
! ZEBZ=E ZEB=% =BE=E
‘

=T = oF = FE =
i T Fi FT
| N . B _ _
REEESEE f424,887; (80,632) -~

PESBHIRERHECELRAZE 04,575 (46,530) -
EHRSHNZERER £26.838) (4,799) -

BELFBTEE (33457 (131,961)J -

—~ = - e
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23. &% ()

H REBEERN

AREEE 23]
R-BZE-F-A-B2HER 6,407,730 1,868,854
KEZ 2T 507,299 153,564
ERTRE (150,830) (150,830)
RIBBR-F-RB-B2ZERF :6,764,199 1,871,588
BEEZHF 589,444 56,446
EHARE (109,953) (109,953)
R-BEZHF+-R=+—-G2&R% 7,243,690 1,818,081

AEBZRERNNBERAERHRLE AT 23,177,000 (ZBE—F 1 438,0007T) FEEF o

24, WEMEQE

RIZBEZEXAZTRHE @ FEBCTHREE -2 A B)Pacific 888, LLCENIB D 2B T °

It1& - Pacific 888, LLC R AEBEEZENB LR

RZIZEZB—FEXAZ+NB » ZEEWEEGarden Road (BVI) Limited % CitiRealty (BVI) Limited 22

BITZRAE o
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24. YEEHME 2 F ()

ZEXZRASTBETE AR -

WiEEEFHE -
BEEE
FEWER - HMERFAMNFHR
RITEERRE
BNk ZEREAGER
R £19,93G) -

HIEEE - (4,251)

52,792 1,941,843

PREXE - VoY A ENCIPeR: £ (95,828) -

BAE 26,588 1,941,843

BRH:
il 3 B2 12 - 300,060

RERE 38,5388 1,641,783

35,585 | 1,941,843

EkE2FRER
BENE 26,586} | (1,641,783)

RITEEFRESBA 4,238 -

WEMBARZESRESESEYRLESE {32,588} | (1,641,783)

RERNFBUBHHMBLAIBUBIEEEEDPHAFTKEBRLA12,166,000 T EXERY
1,250,000 LR ATIER] - REAFUBHMNBELATSHEELAF2RERNEBYBEAZE -

— AJ!LSB Lol

ki)
B
nt




25.

26.

EXEREXS
RERXR XA UERUKRAERHEO405%175,810,73 1 EBREEC.S0TTBRT ©
e g

BREAQRTAR-ANNFABTEBRBZERBABRRRN-_ZEE-—F+ A+ HEMBBZRE
REUMENBEERERRAFABRITEH A BRTRAEBRE) (58] - A2 FE
EENRTERETEAMREZES BEALCAREMNBARZES)BEALTZRG °

A E

a AHBZEWPATABARAREAWBADZTRAR  EE  BRAL  REAR
RRERAEZEALZRADTZHE -

b, ABZSHEACEIETEMRAZEZZART  AMEEESSREYBRTEREZAL
BE(BRHAT)AAIA[EAEAHEAR2AMNEBARBES AXAREFAHER
AEMARTHARTESEACARNEEMME QR AETMABHEAL - REBAREER -

¢ RBEANEUERTZBREERETEREKRTE 2 2RAESREMEOTESRS (K
B 2RY  BEMEMFEFTIR ZEARD —HFAER  ERRQDERFHE RN
RHERTRAZROBEES 21 - BEAH B HBRTZROBR (FTEEREEBRT
EFFRFEARTECEREMBITZROEE) B54,127 853K A RTAR-BBT=F
ZAtTREMAEZSEFNBBRENHMERTTEMZESBITRENI% -

d HEF-—USEARFHIER2BRENZIRTER  SEFRBEFEREZERE
ORFHA+T-EARNEANHBERFAERTERAZEBREZECRTRARTRORL
Y BBEBRTZABENIROGIM % AFERTERE -

e. URBEREIBROZHBESHA(BRECRFREABRE) - THEABRBRESZ
ZtTREARER=TNEARE -—BHH-

f. BREXEQR BREVTEZALEFEZEEHRA-TRER -

9. BAFBZER  TAS2EAZRBREXFSEARHE-TNER  §FARF1.005T
FEREMBETEBREZARE -




W% & w0

26. BEREHE (8)

A&t

h.

HEE &)
REEFEZAZTTEBRESTRBERD 2SRER BHINEBERTERER WAS

EXH ZAZERREBRSXEFLTRAEBIALTRA) EERBSXZMAR
DB (B BRRAVZRABERNE  RNEZEBRTERENAELEE
EEMXFABRAIIZROZEERREFFE  LESERE - BRBEITEERRND
EfE °

FAERBTE  RZZEFNFABTEER

RER - AATRAFEEZBERRASDERZ HEEHEER AT

? a851 |
f@@ﬂé/@”‘/@m } - - ﬁ@ﬂ@ﬂ@ﬁw@@@@ %ﬁ:ﬂﬂ//'ﬂ@@@@@
| aosE | EES:  BREZ  EEE:.  aM%.  AANE
BTEEEsH EEE | BEG BRE  2BEE
1997 654,000 - - - (654,000 -
1998 1,611,000 - - - - 1,611,000
1999 509,000 - - - - 509,000
2000 723,000 - - (12,000) - 711,000
2001 1,104,000 - - (37,000) - 1,067,000
2002 - 987,000 - (17,000 - 970,000
4,601,000 987,000 - (66,000 (654,000) 4,368,000

)
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26. B (8

ESRULRIFBECBRENFAENRENT ¢

ﬁ REEE

; HoU0RIR0 L‘ ;; RIS/0H2061° #3200

g - BRER BRPz, BfRz. EEGz %%2: HRGE

| RTERESS ‘ 2%@ﬁi @ﬁ@; BRE BRE BRE  zZERE

1997-2002 3,255,000 560,000 - - (410,000) 3,405,000

BEERTFERECERNRENT .

& fﬂ%ml BNEE TEREE.  BBE

| =

1997 -AhtERE+ES -MtERATHERAE -MANERAR+ARE 21519
“EE-FNATER “EE-FEMATEA

1998 -AWANE-AZ+TZB| -AANE-BZ+=RHEZ “EZ5E-AZ1=ZHE 6.912

“Z2E-Ff-BZtZH “BEZF-HF-TZH

1999 -AANEZR+ZE -AANEZETZHZ “EE-EZHF+ZRHE 7.020
ZBEEMEZA+=H “ZEMEZA+ZH

2000 “EZEFE_R+MA “ZREE"FTHWABE ZEE_FE_RTHRZE 10.116
“E2ETIF-A+MmA ZSZEF-F+MmA

2001 ZEE-F-A+R8 “EE-F-fT/HE ZEZTE-BTtEE 13.392
“E2ERE-B+AA ZEEAE-HB+ARB

2002 “SE2-"E-A-tN\B| ZEE-E-B-t/\BZE “EEME-AZtARE 8.440

“ERt+E-AZ1+NH ZEEtE-AZTN\R
Mgt :

() R-AALEE—
Ho-—BEEFE=

e

iy HRRTFE-BREMITZAER1.007T -

(i) FARTEREZEERIENRBRAMNR -

ARANERFRTFZBREDRER-ANAMAEZA+AERZERTRARBRIIHE
ZE_FRTFZBREDBR-ANAFAATBEEAZETTBER -
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27.

28.

BRERE S

AEBRBERESINMEERIZERNEANTE - AEBATBFECEREREHBEERHEM
FaT 8 o ZETEADREBERNREBAEROAZEMR L - HEEHEAKREZEESH  ABX
E=EEE - ZETHHEEREIMEABMUIN  HABEREESRELFHES%E10% 8
SMEERMNEFNTEAEEEEE 2 REREFAMELZH

HREBRTHRER —SETTFHTHNEFEQRSTE - FURBHFAB ZESTES N
L e BRRRERESE -

H-ZEZTF+ A BB AEEREEZHFAREBEEASMAMNBHMATBEE - REZX
E AEEZHREREEFE%E10%  MESZHRER% -

BE -2 F+ - A=+ HUHFERENRFTEICBAERN 2HFH1,640,000T (ZE2F—F .
2,149,000T) EREBERKEFEZHR - BEZBE-F+ A=+ —HLEFEZEKRRE
ST REEEAR22,916,000T (ZBEE—F :23,119,000T) ERWERAHEKR - RZBEZ=
+ZAZ+—H REXRFEEFRE1,558000c (2 —F | &) HABRETEL -
EERR

RIEBZE-F+ZA=1T—H  AREZYVERBELH28,125000,000K (ZEEF—F
27,773,000,000%) BRI ZEVEEZECHEWS - REUWE - HEWAREMWEBYEFRESL
CPWBRERELNEA610,000T (ZFBEF—F : 95,414,0007T) ' BAEERTEEEHRBR
IR o
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20.

30.

KEHERBARIE

TEHE
R-FBZBZFFZAZT—R AEERIAVBEBRENZARBRERIAEENT

(@) BEDYEFEHARMFEALNS2,947,040,0005T (ZZBF—F : 3,706,690,0007T) ; HHP D%
WENSH2,456,792,000T (ZFZF—F © 3,255,261,0007T) ;

b) BREBFRMEXNA74,380,000T (ZBE—F : 43,537,000T) ; HPBDHEHNELH
13,331,000t (Z BB — £ : 18,804,0007T) ; &

© RIMELBEANTLUEEERERZRIEHENLE154,310,000t (= B8 — F
143,854,0007T) °

N

RIZZE2ZEFZA=1T—H FARARETHELAZERTRERBEFEMS TLALERY
#39,915,088,0007T (=FF — % : 9,248,050,0007T) °

BREFS  REERAQRBAR-ZE_F+ A=t -HUBEFNERAEHEBERARER -
BEHERE
ZEREABHBEA

MERE ZRFEWERH795,464,0007T (ZFE—F © 859,226,000T) « ZMEZ2EAEROEE
ABH—FRE o

HEERRRAE  ARECEREVRZAEAERDE  TEUATHBEAWE T R RERE
HENFE

=88=8 =57

f FE F 5

—FRX 708,525 725,530
—ERER 814,253 | 1,015,624
EF#& 48,379 32,222
1,571,857 | 1,773,376

| T T EET

7163
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BEmEmEE)
FEERRBEA
ZTEERERB  AREEUTAABENEEHERE  YAEUTHEREM




3. AMEALZZH

FEEREEEATEFAETREAZRERAERNGF - Z5FHEALRARQATZRLE
BRRESEERANZZDNE - ZEXZ U -REBERRBITNARBEZZIERAHE -

|

=8Bz =ZBE5-£
BE+ZR=+—-HLEZXS3
ES W= 3,734 19,227
kAl § 9,781 2,114
BREEE 249 240
XNEEEEHESE 2,450 2,400
ZRHIFHEHEIRRARER 804,571 236,396
RT-—RA=+—-B#&#E
FE UL B R B FIR (BRER14) 9,992 -
FEURER - e RFESRE

- BEEEAL 3.585 16,909
IR - REREHER

-HHEAL 80,991 34,169

—BENT 3,074 3,224
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32. TEMBLrAER

RRARRZBER-F+A=1+— EEEW%"TZﬁM&DT

!
|
|
!

ERAR FEEBHES
EBBBEAT BRBERES EEEE HEREDE
TRBERREER Y REE

Jolly Trend Limited EERIET REZR 100%
BBRTR B BITRE |
EEEBLE S8 BRRE SEHE BEESE
EEBRAIREE .

SEAERAE 2RERBEIR mERE 100%
BEBERREARLA JRERB® 1T YIERE 100%
KEHRA REREBE T ¥ERE 100%
EEREARALF 2REBRAE¥ T BRRE 100%
CP (Portion A) Limited RERBEB 1T Y¥ERE 100%
CP (Portion B) Limited JRERBE IR MERE 100%
JERERERLT 2RBRBY T MERE 100%
IEZBR AT REREY T MmERE 100%




32. EEWE""]%M( )

| £0% |
\ . BBOR B | TEBRITRE |
ERREAH  @RRARES EEEE BRES S |
Eé%ﬁiﬁ&@%(%ﬁ) ; |
RREBERERLT RERBEI0T TEER 100%
ERFRLT 2RBREBEBIT MERE 100%
BERERBRAF ZREREBE IR BERE 100%
ENHEREBRAF 2RERAER 1T MERE 100%
BRERBRBRAT 5,000 BRBE 1T BIEEE 100%
HEFEERAT 2RERBEIT BIERE 100%
BEIRBRAT 2REGBEE 1T RERS 100%
HHREEBRA 10,000RERB 1T @ PEER 100%
HEERRLE 2REBRBEIT MERE 100%
mEERAE 10,000,00082 E A% MERE 100%
BT
BEERAE 2RERAER 1T MERE 100%
Renaissance City Development 2RERE® 10T MERR 100%
Company Limited
ERZFER ‘
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32. TEWBAAER (B)

(et s e
|

 BENEBELT

SWE B
ZHEE

= 4“
=2E = S
o EEZEIEW

3

=
=
Wy
=58

7

W o

L
A

Bl g

w3
Ry,
IR

o

EEBRIREE (F) -

ENNESEERAT JRERBE IR MEERE

ERERLA BREBRBE T RERe P

[FEBRQT 2,000,0000% & A% BREZR
B0 57T

BEERENREATEERLT | 2BRBRE®I0XT EHER

BEEIRBRLE RERAEEIT RERE 100%

BENERBERAT 2REREE 10T MERRE 100%

BEWKEBRAF 100,00088 5 1% B 7% 100%
BEE1007T

BERBERAT 1,000/ SR B 1T REAE 100%

BEMNEEEER AT 100,000f8 B IR Y EER 100%
BT

BiEBRAQA 600,0008% & i BEMBES 100%
BT
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32. TEMBErAER (8

| 4 BAT
|  BESR  FEEBTRE
EENEAT  BRRREE EEE  BEESE
EEBHIREE (@)
ZBERDLT 2REBRBEY 1T MEIRE 100%
HEBRBMBRAF EEBRBE 1T MR E 100%
AERBRDLH 2RERBE IR MERE 100%
Zamanta Investments Limited 100 ERBE 10T MERE 100%
AEERAT 2RBRBEIT MERE 85.93%
Missleton Finance Limited 1,000,000 & & b 85.93%
BT
BERRBERLA 1,000,000 F % MERE 85.93%
BT
ERBHERREBRY
RIEREEE
Great Eagle Hotels (UK) Limited | 1881%E T B JE R 100%
EMERARIRESE
Great Eagle Hotels OREBRER MT | BEKE 100%
{Canada) Limited
|
PEE L I *169 |
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32. TEWMBLARER (F)

/ALﬁ’= = (ks

' ‘»:"—rj‘: il
C RV S TR Y

EEBRERREBRIR
EEMNEE -

Katesbridge Group Limited REZR
ERMRLREE

Southgate Hotel Management 17,408 BIR2A 7T
Pty. Ltd.

EEBERARER
REMABREE

Great Eagle Hotels i AEP YIERE 100%
(New Zealand) Limited

EHRARRLREE !

Great Eagle Hotels 1,000 EEE BIE & 100%
(Auckland) Limited
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32. TEMBLrRAER ()

: BRF
| ;
3 - BREOR FrEEBERA
HERELT  BRBERER EEHE ERELDE
EEERIREE
* EIH Properties Company 1,000 T MERE 100%
— XX, LLC
* Pacific Dolphin Corporation T00REEE MERE 100%
* Pacific Spear Corporation 10082 B BR0.001%E T ERE 100%
* Pacific Ygnacio Corporation 1008 EE B MERE 100%
* Pacific 888, LLC 4,850,000% T MERE 100%
* Shorthills NJ, Inc. 100lBRI1ET MERE 100%

Mz BEEFFERFATMHE 2PZEMBLAALBREERS -

* ZERRYNFHED BERSGHMHITER -

EZERRBLEEETMBLIAERIHBRAR St BERABHAREAZREREER

BEREARECHMBLRHEMN -
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33. XEHELAER

AARRIBRF+ZAZ+-BABIEHE LT ZENNT ¢

R

]
ENN

]
X

(oot
b

(=
y& el

;

T

2
2
5

}}

ﬁ piTTH

* City Apex Limited

BEFH-Recrut BRR A T)

1,000 BR1%=T

1,125,000,0008%
FRRBHE0.057T

34.04%

* BARLKAED - BERSEHFIEL o
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% 8 —
TENZHER

R-FFE-F+-A=1+—H

(a) BEPYE
T | AR  IBER BEEE DREE =I8E MBS
1 C#EER EER). - EoE
EEBNE BFE | LETIR#ET| 129,000 1,761,000 20045 100%
HATEER (SEFER=3 PP £—F W=
Ls#HRR BIE B
NEERHEER 1109958 BEAER
BIEEE
TRIBYE

* FERTEEERZE THEE -

g S

P




B 4% —
EEHENEE

()

RABKREWHE

N8

o,
b

WEREERBE R SEEENE B HEEESEH
‘ EER)
EERBEY
EBEMBEBIR (E3 10,000 100%
SEREFLERES

EBEFIREIESHARE (G2 35,000 100%

EREEBI1005RRRET IE 34,000 100%

EBEFBEBEBREERL B¥E BTE 270,000 100%

ZEHRHEY

ERTEEREREEES [CEYg - 1,227,000 85.93%
BrE 303,000 100%

EBNERDERBEE1H BFE 28,000 100%

BLRES

FALLIERA




(b) RMREWXR (@

IREEE S
MEEFERIEE gz EEEEAE X ERES=®
(FFR)
EEHRBRY (E)
&8I BAHE IR RE I8 23,000 100%
EBNEBEREIRORAREE SEIE B¥E 312,000 100%
EBNERDEILRIERE BIE B 364,000 100%

BEEE

ST EER
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FHEWEWEE

(o) REAREWR (R

EBKAEE
KERBBAEEE
1 Portland Place,
Regent Street, London,

WI1N 4JA,

United Kingdom
ME R Z 1w Delta Chelsea Hotel BIE, B 1,130,000 100%
33 Gerrard Street West,

Toronto, Ontario M5G 124,
Canada
BN BFESheraton Towers BIE, R 385,000 100%
Southgate Hotel
One Southgate Avenue,
Southbank, Melbourne,
Victoria 3006, Australia
#A7a B B 52 B Sheraton Auckland BIE /B 309,000 100%
Hotel and Towers
83 Symonds Street,

Auckland 1, New Zealand
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(b) RMREWR(E

N

ERXARE &

ZE[EWalnut Creek Pacific Ygnacio Plaza
500 Ygnacio Valley Road,
Walnut Creek, CA 94596,

USA

Z Bl L 8Hotel Le Meridien
250 Franklin Street,

Boston, MA 02110,
USA

Z B =% 353 Sacramento Street
353 Sacramento Street ,

San Francisco, CA 94111,
USA

EB =¥ ™ 150 Spear Street
150 Spear Street,

San Francisco, CA 94105,
USA

E Bl #2#£388 West Sixth Street
888 West Sixth Street,

Los Angeles, CA 90017,

USA

L%

GEYE =

[SE Yk

GEYS- L2

121,000

281,000

307,000

257,000

99,000

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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B o —
BB NE

(BB HE)

EF

EXH 2,899,181 2,677,251

MM RSB EERT 1,333,357 804,692 775,034 659,584 738,558
BB E N REE 8,063 6,559 (11,787) (13,263) 3,479
BREBEDRF 1,341,420 811,251 763,247 646,321 738,687
B (96,243) (97,015) (99,630) (108,279)| (772,333
BREL 1B 1,245,177 714,236 663,617 538,042 £20,782
DERRES (108,009) (68,912) (40,664) (30,743) 83,738
ARERFER 1,137,168 645,324 622,953 507,299 380,46
BEHEAR

BEAH 27,421,215 | 28,032,514 | 29,291,891 | 29,021,639 | 28,734,587
BELH (11,318,680)| (10,424,342)| (10,753,002)| (13,272,742)|1°2,888,76%}
DEHRRER (1,595,595)| (1,691,399) (1,036,549) (625,652)
RRERER 14,506,940 | 15,916,773 | 17,502,340 | 15,123,245 | 4,653,844
>178 CELOERAS }
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